



FEDERATION INTERNATIONALE FELINE  
FIFe



# **DECISION MINUTES**

**GENERAL ASSEMBLY**  
**30+31.05.2024**

**Pannonia Tower Hotel**  
**Parndorf**  
**Austria**



## AGENDA

### 1. Welcome speech of the President

The President, Mrs Annette Sjödin, opened the Meeting at 09.00 am and welcomed those present. She thanked KKÖ (AT) for hosting this meeting and offered her sincere apologies for forgetting to hand them the FIFe flag last year. She expressed the wish of the Board that this Assembly, would be a meeting where participants showed mutual respect, were able to compromise and make decisions for the benefit of the cat. She informed the Assembly that since the last General Assembly, four judge colleagues had die: Mr Beat Rettenmund from Argentina, Mr Carl-Kristian Gulsett from Norway, Mr Gianmichele Romano from Italy and Mrs Nurit Pahl from Israel had died. Also, Felis Hungarica's Vice-President, Mr Laca Pal from Hungary had died, She asked everyone to observe a minute of silence. Then, she declared the GA 2024 officially opened. The President said that if anyone wanted matters to be taken to the minutes, this should be explicitly requested and all changes or rewording of proposals (including the page number) should be submitted in writing and sent by email to the General Secretary, in English, German and French. She stated that Lux Cat Club-FFL (LU) submitted a written request to vote by secret ballot for the duration of the entire General Assembly.

The President announced that the Vice-President, Mr Veikko Saarela could not attend due to urgent work commitments. He sent his apologies and most sincere regards and wished all participants a good meeting. With reference to article 4.6 of the Statutes, the President confirmed that General Secretary, Mr Eric Reijers and the Vice-Treasurer Mr Karl Preiss would assist her in chairing the meeting.

She informed the Assembly that the Breeding & Registration Commission (BRC) would be represented by Mrs Sarah Johnson, the Disciplinary Commission (DC) by Mrs Anne Paloluoma, the Health & Welfare Commission (HWC) by Mrs Sara Moroni, the Judges & Standards Commission (JSC) by Mrs Donatella Mastrangelo, the Public Relations Commission by Mrs Adéla Justová, the Show Commission (SC) by Mrs Thea Friškovec-Keller, and the Breed Councils by Mrs Nathalie Smits-Peelen (BCA). Then, she stated that the Controllers, Mrs Marie-France Pohl and Mr Jürg Keller-Friškovec were present as was the show calendar administrator (SCA), Mrs Dorte Kaae.

Finally, she said that the coffee, tea and lunch breaks would take place according to schedule and she asked all present to switch off their mobile phones or put them on silent mode.

She gave the floor to the General Secretary, Mr Eric Reijers, who called the Roll of the Delegates.

### 2. Roll call of the Delegates

Country	Member	Delegate	Advisor
AR	AFA	Proxy to FFM (MX)	
AT	KKÖ	Mrs Helene Reiter	
AT	ÖVEK	Mr Herbert Steinhauser	Mrs Marina Renner
BE	FBE	Mr Joeri Vanrusselt	Mrs Stéphanie Dupont
BR	FFB	Mr Rodrigo Araújo	Mr Gerson Alves Pereira
BY	Felinolog	Mrs Svetlana Stoliarova	
CH	FFH	Mr Alfred Wittich Soojarit	Mrs Stéphanie Feyfar
CN	CCU	Mrs Hao Wang (a.k.a. Mona)	Mrs Elena Zagorskaya
CO	ACFEC	not represented	
CZ	ČSCH-SCHK	Mr Martin Kabina	Mrs Lena Vencliková
DE	1. DEKZV e.V.	Mrs Waltraut Sattler	Mrs Monika Francé
DK	FD	Mrs Bette Lind	Mrs Inge Nord
EE	EKL-Felix	Mrs Marina Vinkel	
ES	ASFE	Mr Luis Calvo	Mrs Soledad Sanchez
FI	SK	Mrs Riikka Turpeinen	Mrs Johanna Abgottspon
FR	FFF	Mr Patrick Watrin	
GB	FB	Mrs Debbie Downham	Mrs Nadine Duffin
GR	FFG	Mr George Dorgiakis	Mr Christos Romanos
HR	SFDH	Mrs Amelija Leopoldović	Mrs Diana Di Natale
HU	FH	Mrs Claudia Haslinger	Mrs Nicole Haslinger
ID	ICA	Proxy to Felikat (NL)	
IS	Kynjakettír	Mr Marteinn Tausen	
IT	ANFI	Mrs Hana Klein	Mrs Rosella Mercadante
LI	Aristocat	Proxy to FFH (CH)	
LT	LFA-Bubaste	Mrs Jurgita Kazokaitiene	Mrs Jurgita Gustatiene
LU	LCC-FFL	Mrs Marie-France Pohl	Mrs Jenny Siebenborn
LV	CFCA	Mrs Anžela Fomičeva	Mrs Brigita Guobe
MD	FM	Mrs Irina Bokova	Mrs Tatiana Motoc
MX	FFM	Mr Miguel Sierra Bernal	Mrs Ivonne Hernández Parizot
MY	KKM	Mrs Laura Scholten	
NL	Felikat	Mrs Gabrielle Amsterdam	Mr Erwin Moll
NL	Mundikat	Mr Marcel Frank	Mr Ad de Bruijn

NO	NRR	Mrs Anne Veland	Mr Steven L. Jones
PL	FPL	Mr Sebastian Pruchniak	Mr Krzysztof Czyżkowski
PT	CPF	Mr João Noronha Carvalho da Silva	Mrs Madalena de Vasconcelos Gomes
RO	FAF-FR	Mr Adrian Alexandru Dragota	Mr Aurelian Ionescu
RU	FRU	Mrs Elena Noskova	
SE	SVERAK	Mrs Lotta Kragh	Mrs Jeanette Stark
SI	ZFDS	Mr Božidar Grigić	Mrs Vanja Knez
SK	FFS	Mr Michal Adamec	Mrs Soňa Ivanková
UA	UFU	Proxy to FAF-FR (RO)	
<b><u>Patronage member</u></b>			
FFBg (BG)		Mrs Gabriela Dimova	Mihaela Damyanova

The General Secretary announced that there were now **36 (thirty-six) Members** present and 4 (**four**) proxies. The total number of votes was **40 (forty)**, the absolute majority was established at **21 (twenty-one)** and the qualified majority ( $\frac{3}{4}$ ) at **30 (thirty)**.

Mr Adrian Dragota asked for the floor on behalf of UFU (UA). He stated that the Russian Member present was not set up according to the rules and should not sit at this table. He had official documents to prove this, which he could read out later. The President answered that this matter would not be dealt with and that FRU was and is a FIFe Member that paid all their fees and had a right to be present and to vote. The General Secretary added that this matter had been dealt with already at the last Board meeting, which could be read by everyone. He stated that the Russian Member was not the only Member to have changed its name and that the argument for the Board was and always had been that the people were the same and he gave several examples. In summary he stated that FIFe did not deal with the internal registrations of Members in their own countries. Lastly, he stated that the name change from ARCCA to FRU had been recommended by the then FIFe Vice-President, this took place at the end of 2017. At the 2018 GA, the Board was discharged of responsibility as it was in all following years. Since that time no one had queried this matter.

Mrs Jurgita Gustaitiene also asked for the floor and explained, at length, that in her opinion the Russian Member was not legitimate and should not sit at this table and she stated this violated the FIFe Statutes. The General Secretary asked both Mr Dragota and Mrs Gustaitiene that if they had such complicated matters and serious reservations, why they did not inform the Board in advance so the Board could have studied this matter. Then he asked Mrs Gustaitiene to state which article of the FIFe Statutes had been violated and stated that there is no mention in the FIFe Statutes and Rules what legal form a Member should have. He asked for a short break to confer with the Board. After a few minutes the General Secretary stated that the Board had decided to minute the protests of Ukraine and Lithuania. Then he stated that the internal registrations of Members was not the Board's or anyone's business and now was not the time to make an in depth and legally founded investigation, what's more, there was no time for this either at this moment. The President took the floor and stated that the Assembly would continue with the agenda.

### **3. Election of two Scrutineers and three Supervisors for the Minutes of the GA 2024**

Before voting started, Mr Preiss explained the voting system and a test round of voting took place.

Mr João Noronha proposed Mr Jürg Keller-Friškovec and Mr Krzysztof Czyżkowski as scrutineers. they were duly elected.

Since Mr Keller-Friškovec was a candidate for the position of Treasurer, someone else should take his place when that position would be up for election. Mr João Noronha suggested Mrs Cecilia Wennergren. She was duly elected.

Then Mr João Noronha proposed Mrs Bette Lind as supervisor for the English version, Mrs Marina Renner for the German version and Mrs Stéphanie Dupont for the French version of the 2024 Minutes. There were no other suggestions and these three ladies were duly elected..

### **4. Drafting of the Minutes**

The President stated that article 4.6 of the Statutes indicated that the minutes of the meeting were kept by the General Secretary, Mr Eric Reijers and if needed the Vice-Secretary, Mr Charles Spijker would assist him. There was no need for a vote and the GA agreed.

### **5. Approval of the Agenda**

The President stated that requests had been received from Members for live streaming of the General Assembly. She referred to articles 4.8 and 4.10 of the Statutes and stated the Board had decided to put this to matter to the vote but only for item 21, the proposals. She also stated that this was a statutory matter and needed a qualified majority to be accepted. The proposal for live streaming was not carried.

Mrs Anne Veland asked for the floor and stated that NRR wished to make a reservation against this decision and asked it to be minuted.

The President informed the Assembly that proposal 1 from the JSC on raising judges' allowance would move to item 16. Several proposals need to be re-organised but this would happen when we got there. With these changes, the agenda was approved.

**6. Approval of the Minutes of the General Assembly 2023 in Tavira (PT)**

These Minutes were approved.

**7. Report of the President**

The President referred to her report.

**8. Report of the General Secretary**

The General Secretary referred to his report.

**9. Report of the Treasurer**

The Treasurer referred to his report.

**10. Report of the two Controllers**

The President gave the floor to Mr Jürg Keller-Friškovec who read their report.

**11. Discussion on the reports of the Treasurer and the two Controllers**

There were several questions and suggestions but none of the speakers asked their words to be minuted.

**12. Discharge of responsibility:**

**a) of the Executive Board**

The Board was duly discharged.

**b) of the Treasurer**

The Treasurer was duly discharged.

**13. Reports of the Commissions**

**a) Breeding & Registration Commission (BRC)**

The Chairman of the BRC, Mrs Johnson referred to their report.

**b) Disciplinary Commission (DC)**

The Chairman of the DC, Mrs Paloluoma, referred to their report.

**c) Health & Welfare Commission (HWC)**

The Chairman of the HWC, Mrs Sara Moroni referred to their report.

**d) Judges & Standards Commission (JSC)**

The Chairman of the JSC, Mrs Donatella Mastrangelo, referred to their report.

**e) Public Relations Commission (PRC)**

The representative of the PRC, Mrs Adéla Justová, referred to their report.

**f) Show Commission (SC)**

The Secretary of the SC, Mrs Friškovec-Keller, referred to their report.

**14. Other reports**

**a) Breeding Council Administrator (BCA)**

The Breed Council Administrator, Mrs Nathalie Smits-Peelen, referred to her report.

**b) Report on cats bred/imported/registered in FIFe (2023)**

The Chairman of the BRC, Mrs Johnson, referred to the report and pointed out some matters.

**15. Elections (*Members, who supported candidates, appear behind or below their names*)**

**a) Election of a Treasurer for a period of 3 years**

**Candidates in alphabetical order:**

- **Mr Leopold van de Haterd (NL-Mundikat)** nominated by Mundikat (NL), KKÖ (AT), ÖVEK (AT), ČSCH-SCHK (CZ), SFDH (HR), FH (HU), FFM (MX), KKM (MY), Felikat (NL), CPF (PT), FFS (SK).
- **Mr Jürg Keller-Friškovec (CH)** nominated by FFH (CH), 1.DEKZV e.V. (DE), FD (DK), SK (FI), Kynjakettír (IS), LFA-Bubaste (LT), NRR (NO), FAF-FR (RO), SVERAK (SE) and ZFDS (SI).

**Mr Jürg Keller-Friškovec** was duly elected as Treasurer for a period of three years.

**b) Election of a Vice President for a period of 3 years**

**Candidates in alphabetical order:**

- **Mrs Donatella Mastrangelo (IT)** nominated by FBe (BE) and Felikat (NL).
- **Mr Veikko Saarela (FI)** nominated by SK (FI), KKÖ (AT), ČSCH-SCHK (CZ), 1. DEKZV e.V. (DE), FD (DK), SFDH (HR), FH (HU), Kynjakettír (IS), LFA-Bubaste (LT), KKM (MY), NRR (NO), FAF-FR (RO), SVERAK (SE) and FFS (SK),
- **Mr Dietmar Sagurski (DE)** nominated by ÖVEK (AT) and FFM (MX).

**Mr Veikko Saarela** was duly elected as Vice President for a period of three years.

c) **Election of 2 Controllers for a period of 3 years**

**Candidates in alphabetical order:**

- **Mr Hans Boskär (SE)** nominated by SVERAK (SE), FD (DK), Kynjakettír (IS) and NRR (NO).
- **Mr George Dorgiakis (GR)** nominated by FFG (GR).
- **Mr Timo Kanninen (NL-Felikat)** nominated by Felikat (NL), FBe (BE), 1.DEKZV e.V. (DE).
- **Mrs Marie-France Pohl (LU)** nominated by LCC-FFL (LU), FBe (BE), 1. DEKZV e.V. (DE), SFDH (HR), LFA-Bubaste (LT) and CPF (PT).

**Mr Timo Kanninen and Mrs Marie-France Pohl** were duly elected as Controllers for a period of three years.

d) **Election of 2 Assistant Controllers for a period of 3 years**

**Candidates in alphabetical order:**

- **Mr Hans Boskär (SE)** nominated by SVERAK (SE), Kynjakettír (IS) and NRR (NO).
- **Mr George Dorgiakis (GR)** nominated by FFG (GR), 1.DEKZV e.V. (DE), LFA-Bubaste (LT), KKM (MY) and CPF (PT).

**Mr Hans Boskär and Mr George Dorgiakis** were duly elected as Assistant Controllers for a period of three years.

16. **Financial matters – Financial Report**

At this agenda item, proposal 1 from the JSC to raise to judges' allowance, was dealt with. Mrs Mastrangelo presented the proposal. After some discussion the proposal was **withdrawn**.

a) **Determination of the fees - 01.01.2025 - 31.12.2025**

There were no changes to the fees for 2025. and the determination of the fees for 01.01.2025 - 31.12.2025 was accepted.

b) **Determination of the monthly allowance for the General Secretary - 01.01.2025 - 31.12.2025**

There were no changes, and the determination of the monthly allowance for the General Secretary 01.01.2025 - 31.12.2025 was accepted.

17. **Presentation of the budget for the year 2025, discussion and vote**

The budget for 2025 was accepted.

18. **Applications for patronage membership (qualified - ¾ majority)**

*No applications for patronage membership*

19. **Reports on Members under patronage (no voting)**

Bulgaria – Federation of Felinology Bulgaria (FFBg) - Mentor: FAF-FR - Felis Romania  
On behalf of FAF-FR, Mr Adrian Alexandru Dragota referred to his report.

20. **Applications for full membership (qualified - ¾ majority)**

*No applications submitted*

Mrs Gabrielle Amsterdam asked for the floor and said she would like to make a short statement, which she wished to be minuted. Earlier today, LCC-FFL asked for secret voting during the entire General Assembly. According to our Statutes, we have to comply with this. However, no request of any Member should deprive all other Members of their right to show their votes publicly. Nowadays, transparency is more and more demanded in society, not only from governments and businesses but also from associations. All of us here, at least I hope, are representing our individual members and their opinions. I for one, would like to be able to be transparent and not only push a button on a machine, but also show my vote publicly and I hope many of you will follow my example to do this as well. To this end, I prepared a little something for you, some nice, coloured cards, in red and green will be handed out to you. Green for yes, red for no and if you want to abstain, you can show the back of a card. I truly hope that many of you will join and show the voting cards after voting. This was met with applause.

The President thanked Felikat for preparing this and she saw no problem if delegates wanted to show their votes, but this would not be minuted. She emphasized this could only be done after the voting on the voting machines was done.

21. **Proposals ..... page 7**

At this General Assembly, **78** (seventy-eight) proposals were submitted. Of these, **48** (forty-eight) proposals were accepted (■), **8** (eight) were rejected (■) and **22** (twenty-two) were withdrawn (■).

a) **Proposals regarding the Statutes (qualified - ¾ majority) ..... page 7**

- NL (Felikat) proposal 1: New article § 4.11 – Membership requirements .....7
- NL (Mundikat) proposal 1: New chapter – Ombudsman (incl. new chapter in General Rules) .....7

<b>b)</b>	<b>Proposals regarding the General Rules.....</b>	<b>page 8</b>
	■ JSC proposal 1: Annex 1 Judges Allowance amounts .....	8
	■ The Board proposal 1: New article § 2.8 Show Statistics.....	9
	■ The Board proposal 2: Annex 1 Judges Allowance per day.....	9
<b>c)</b>	<b>Proposals regarding the Standards (including the General Part) &amp; the EMS System .....</b>	<b>page 9</b>
	■ LU (LCC-FFL) proposal 1: SPH whiskers .....	9
	■ NL (Felikat) proposal 2: BLH/BSH shaded and shell .....	9
	■ NO (NRR) proposal 1: NEM change to 6 colour groups.....	10
	■ JSC proposal 2: CORIN .....	10
	■ JSC proposal 3: Various breeds - elimination of faults .....	11
	■ JSC proposal 3.1: RAG Standard .....	11
	■ JSC proposal 3.2: ACL/ACS Standard.....	11
	■ JSC proposal 3.3: MCO Standard.....	12
	■ JSC proposal 3.4: BEN Standard.....	12
	■ JSC proposal 3.5: BUR Standard .....	12
	■ JSC proposal 3.6: EUR Standard .....	12
	■ JSC proposal 3.7: KBL/KBS Standard .....	12
	■ JSC proposal 3.8: MAU Standard .....	13
	■ JSC proposal 3.9: RUS Standard .....	13
	■ JSC proposal 3.10: SPH Standard.....	13
	■ JSC proposal 3.11: BOM Standard.....	13
<b>d)</b>	<b>Proposals regarding the Breeding &amp; Registration Rules.....</b>	<b>page 13</b>
	■ BE (FBe) proposal 1: § 5.2.1 Changes of a cattery name .....	13
	■ CH (FFH) proposal 1: § 3.6 Harmonising breeding restrictions - Table of faults in Show Rules.....	14
	■ CH (FFH) proposal 2: § 6.14 MCO bicolour (03) with blue eyes .....	14
	■ DE (1.DEKZV e.V.) proposal 1: § 6.20 RUS blue point .....	14
	■ LU (LCC-FFL) proposal 2: § 2.2.1 Accomodation - General conditions .....	14
	■ LU (LCC-FFL) proposal 3: § 3.2/3.3 Minimum age for Studs / Queens.....	15
	■ NL (Mundikat) proposal 2: § 6.8 JBS removal restriction of silver .....	15
	■ RO (FAF-FR) proposal 1: § 5.2.3 Application for a cattery name.....	15
	■ BRC proposal 1: § 5.1.1 Change age limit from 10 months to 1 year .....	16
	■ BRC proposal 2: § 5.1.2.1/6.1.3 Removing special codes for registration .....	16
	■ BRC proposal 3: § 5.1.2.2/6.3 Charcoal: EMS code 14 (pattern) instead of t (modifier).....	16
	■ JSC proposal 4: § 10.2.3/5 § 11.2.3/5 Breed lectures on General Assembly Judges Seminar .....	27
<b>e)</b>	<b>Proposals regarding the Breed Council Rules.....</b>	<b>page 17</b>
	• No proposals submitted	
<b>f)</b>	<b>Proposals regarding the Judges Rules .....</b>	<b>page 17</b>
	■ FI (SK) proposal 1: § 1.5 Showing cats when officiating as a Student Judge at category shows ...	17
	■ JSC proposal 5: § 2.1.15 Study of all breeds.....	18
	■ JSC proposal 6: § 2.2.1 Compulsory Student Judges Seminar online .....	18
	■ JSC proposal 7: § 2.3.3/§ 2.3.5/§ 4.2.1 Exam language only English.....	18
	■ JSC proposal 8: § 2.4.4 Exam in further category .....	18
	■ The Board proposal 3: § 3.12 Removal dormant judges.....	19
<b>g)</b>	<b>Proposals regarding the Show Rules.....</b>	<b>page 19</b>
	■ BE (FBe) proposal 2: § 8.2 Open Doors .....	19
	■ BG (FFBg) proposal 1: § 2.6.6 Leave MWS group join BSW group.....	19
	■ BR (FFB) proposal 1: § 4.3/§ 4.4/§ 4.5 Obtaining the titles IC/IP/GIC/GIP/SC/SP .....	19
	■ BY (Felinolog) / CN (CCU) / RU (FRU) Joint proposal : § 2.6.6/§ 4.1.1 Eurasian Winner Show .....	20
	■ CN (CCU) / ID (ICA) / MY (KKM) Joint proposal : § 2.6.6/§ 4.1.1 Asia Pacific Winner Show .....	21
	■ DE (1.DEKZV e.V.) proposal 2: § 8.2 Open Doors .....	21
	■ DK (FD) proposal 1: § 1.17.c Configuration of show cages.....	21
	■ DK (FD) proposal 2: New § 3.2.2 Showing kittens and juniors consecutive weekends .....	21
	■ DK (FD) proposal 3: § 6.5 Class changes only after acceptance by the show secretariat.....	22
	■ FI (SK) proposal 2: § 1.1 – Permit shows during the weekend following the General Assembly .....	22
	■ FI (SK) proposal 3: Annex 2 Exception for titles IC/IP .....	22
	■ FR (FFF) proposal 1: Annex 2 Exception for titles IC/IP .....	28
	■ HU (FFH) proposal 1: § 2.3.d World Show – no qualification needed for kittens (class 12).....	22
	■ ID (ICA) / MY (KKM) Joint proposal: New Annex Exception for titles KCH/JCH .....	23
	■ IT (ANFI) proposal : § 5.4 Change age for classes 9, 10, 11 and 12 .....	23
	■ LT (LFA-Bubaste) proposal 1: Annex 2 Exception for titles IC/IP .....	23
	■ MY (KKM) proposal 1: § 5.4 – Exception for class 13c.....	23
	■ MY (KKM) proposal 2: Annex 4B Exception for titles CH/PR/IC/IP .....	23
	■ NL (Felikat) proposal 3: § 2.3.d World Show – no qualification needed for kittens .....	24

■ NO (NRR) proposal 2: New § 1.18 Responsibilities of the exhibitor.....	24
■ NO (NRR) proposal 3: Annex 2 Exception for titles GIC/GIP .....	24
■ PL (FPL) proposal 1: § 2.6.6 Inclusion in Central European Winner group.....	24
■ PL (FPL) proposal 2: § 4.9.1 Nominations for males and females in classes 11 and 12 .....	24
■ PL (FPL) proposal 3: Annex 2 Exceptions for titles IC/IP .....	25
■ RO (FAF-FR) proposal 2: § 4.3 Obtaining the title Int. Champion or Int. Premior .....	25
■ RO (FAF-FR) proposal 3: New § 4.19 International Winner .....	25
■ SE (SVERAK) proposal 1: § 3.7 Cages .....	26
■ SE (SVERAK) proposal 2: § 4.3 Obtaining the title Int. Champion or Int. Premior .....	26
■ SE (SVERAK) proposal 3: Annex 2 Exception for titles IC/IP.....	26
■ SC/Board/all Commissions proposal 1: § 1.1 more Code of Ethics for exhibitors .....	27
■ SC proposal 2: § 1.8 Change minimum number of cats at International shows to 120 .....	27
■ SC proposal 3: § 1.10 Cages in the judge’s ring.....	28
■ SC proposal 4: § 1.15 Cats appearing in the catalogue .....	28
■ SC proposal 5: § 2.3 World Show – deletion of all qualifications.....	28
■ SC proposal 6: § 2.7 Specific for rules for the World Show and Winner Shows .....	28
■ SC proposal 7: § 2.7 BIV at the World Show and Winner Shows.....	28
■ SC proposal 8: § 4.9.1 Nominations for males and females in classes 11 and 12.....	29
<b>h) Other proposals.....</b>	<b>page 29</b>
■ FR (FFF) proposal 2: Global software.....	29
■ The Board proposal 4: Resignation from the World Cat Congress (WCC).....	29
<b>▶ Annex to Agenda item 21c) .....</b>	<b>page 31 – 63</b>
<b>22. Information on the World Cat Congress (WCC)</b>	
The President had submitted a report about the 2024 WCC Meeting in Thailand. The next WCC Meeting would be hosted by CFA in 2025; at this moment in time, no more information was available.	
<b>23. Miscellaneous</b>	
There were several speakers and suggestions but no one asked their words to be minuted.	
<b>24. Close of the General Assembly</b>	
The President asked Leo van de Haterd to come forward and she thanked him for all the work he had done in the 27 years working for FIFe. The General Secretary stated that it was a bit painful, but the Board wished to give Leo the FIFe Medal of Merit, which were in Leo’s care. Then he told Leo one of these Medals was for him for all the work he has done and was still doing.	
Finally, the President expressed her appreciation to KKÖ one more time for organising and excellent Assembly and she thanked everyone for the good atmosphere and good comments. Then, at 19.15 hours, she declared the 2024 General Assembly in Parndorf, Austria, officially closed.	

By order of the Board,

Annette Sjödin - President

Eric Reijers - General Secretary

Bette Lind - Supervisor of the English version of the Minutes



## PROPOSALS

Abbreviations used	
BC	Breed Council
BRC	Breeding & Registration Commission
DC	Disciplinary Commission
HWC	Health & Welfare Commission
JSC	Judges & Standards Commission
PRC	Public Relations Commission
SC	Show Commission

Legend	
Additions	in <b>bold</b> and <i>italics</i>
Deletions	<del>strikethrough</del>
Moved text	in <i>italics</i> only
Unchanged text	in normal print
Additions decided at the General Assembly	in <b>bold</b> and <i>italics</i> and <u>double underlined</u>
Deletions decided at the General Assembly	<del>double-strikethrough</del>

### Proposals regarding the Statutes (qualified - ¾ majority)

<b>NL</b>	<b>Felikat</b>	<b>Proposal 1</b>	<b>Statutes</b>	<b>§ 4.11</b>
<b>Membership requirements</b>				<b>reworded (new article)</b>

*Members who have not complied with one or more of the following requirements shall forfeit their rights as laid down in Statutes articles 4.1, 4.5 and in the second sentence of article 4.7:*

- a) *when they have not fulfilled their financial obligations as laid down in Statutes article 9.2.*
- b) *when in the preceding calendar year:*
  - ~~1. less than 8 applications for new cattery names were approved~~
  - 2. *less than 100 pedigrees for cats belonging to recognised breeds, bred by their own individual members, were issued by the Member and registered in their Pedigree Book*
  - 3. *less than 2 International shows were organised and took place.*
- c) *when lacking willingness to co-operate with or to include clubs which share the objectives promoted by FIFe.*

*The Executive Board may, upon request, grant exceptions to Members who have justifiable difficulties in meeting the above requirements.*

Voting result	Yes	No	Abstentions	Missing
<input checked="" type="checkbox"/> <b>REJECTED</b>	<b>12</b>	<b>26</b>	<b>2</b>	

<b>NL</b>	<b>Mundikat</b>	<b>Proposal 1</b>	<b>Statutes / General Rules</b>	
<b>Ombudsman</b>				<b>(new chapter)</b>

**Mundikat proposes that FIFe appoints an Ombudsman.**

The FIFe Ombudsman will deal with complaints about members of FIFe.

The FIFe Ombudsman conducts inquiries into cases of maladministration by members of FIFe or on the basis of complaints from members of a FIFe member.

All FIFe members, clubs and Federations fall under the jurisdiction of the FIFe Ombudsman. All parties must cooperate with the investigation. The FIFe Ombudsman is a second line provision. This means that the complaint or problems must have gone through all available procedures. Only when the proper procedures do not result in a solution the FIFe Ombudsman can deal with the complaint. If the FIFe Ombudsman does not obtain the assistance requested, the Executive Board is to be informed, which takes appropriate action.

The Ombudsman is elected by the GA for the duration of 6 (six) years. He can only be re-appointed once, for a second term of 6 (six) years. The Ombudsman receives an annual remuneration, set by the FIFe GA.

The FIFe Ombudsman must:

- Be completely independent and impartial in the exercise of their duties.
- Refrain from any act incompatible with his duties.
- Not fulfil any function within a FIFe Federation or FIFe Club or any arbitration function in another organization that is Cat Fancy related.

- Not engage in any other function deemed undesirable to perform his duties as an impartial party.

The General Assembly may discharge the FIFe Ombudsman if:

- He no longer fulfils the conditions required to do his duties or is guilty of serious misconduct.
- When he has reached the age of 70 years or at own request.
- When he becomes incapable, e.g. because of bad health, to perform his duties
- When he accepts a function that is in conflict or incompatible with his or her duties
- When he no longer resides in a country where a FIFe member is residing
- When the GA concludes that his actions or the lack thereof are detrimental to the trust bestowed the FIFe Ombudsman.

The FIFe Board may suspend the FIFe Ombudsman for a period of 3 months when there are strong convictions, facts or circumstances that could lead to discharge by the GA. The suspension automatically stops after three months and may be prolonged for a period of three months at a time. The GA can decide not to grant the FIFe Ombudsman a remuneration for the period he was suspended.

The FIFe Ombudsman has no authority to investigate when there is a possibility for an appeal regarding the matter or when the matter can be handed to the Disciplinary Commission of FIFe.

Voting result	Yes	No	Abstentions	Missing
<input checked="" type="checkbox"/> REJECTED	2	34	4	

**If this proposal is accepted, a chapter for the Ombudsman needs to be inserted in the General Rules:**

Complaints can only be dealt with by the FIFe Ombudsman when it complies with the following conditions:

- The request and the documentation is dated and signed and submitted in the English language.
- The complaint is regarding an organization within FIFe.
- A complaint has been made with the concerning organization first, but without any proven result. Unless it is not reasonable to expect this in the matter at hand.
- The handling of this complaint took place no longer than one year ago and there is no possibility for an objection or an appeal.
- The complaint does not consider the content of any rule or regulation (but it may consider the application of such a rule or regulation) or the ruling of any Disciplinary Body.
- Comprises a detailed description of the behaviour, the person(s) who conducted this behaviour and the name of the injured party if not the requestor
- The causes for the request are clearly stated and is accompanied with documentation regarding the procedure of the complaint, the results of the investigation by the organisation and the decision of the organisation and the consequences based on this conclusion.

Should the requirements of this article not be met, the FIFe Ombudsman may grant the requester time to enable him to meet all requirements. The FIFe Ombudsman sets this period.

The FIFe Ombudsman is not obliged to start an investigation when:

- The request does not meet the requirements specified.
- The request is unfounded or has no significant interest or the behaviour of the organisation is not very significant
- The request concerns a matter for which an appeal or objection could be made or for which another authority delivered a ruling
- The request concerns an action or behaviour that is or was dealt with by the FIFe Ombudsman, unless there are new facts that could result in a different decision.

Organizations do not need to pay a case fee for the first complaint against them that is dealt with by the FIFe Ombudsman in each financial year. From the second complaint onwards, organizations must pay a fee when the Ombudsman handles a complaint against them. If a case needs to be investigated it becomes a chargeable case, regardless of outcome. This fee is set by the GA and included in Annex 1 of the General Rules.

**Proposals regarding the General Rules**

FIFe	JSC	Proposal 1	General Rules	Annex 1
<b>Minimum amounts net Judges Allowance</b>				

The JSC proposes to raise the minimum allowance for Judges as follows:

Per show .....	<del>100.00</del>	<b>150.00</b>
Except: - two-day show (separated by categories), per day the judge officiates ..	<del>100.00</del>	<b>150.00</b>
- two-day show (not separated by categories) .....	<del>160.00</del>	<b>200.00</b>

Voting result	Yes	No	Abstentions	Missing
 <b>WITHDRAWN</b>				

FIFe Board	Proposal 1	General Rules	§ 2.8
Show statistics			(new article)

*FIFe Members must submit statistics providing the number of cats appearing in the show catalogues of each of their national and international shows. The information shall be divided by breed. These statistics reflecting the previous year, must be sent to the General Secretary by the end of January. The Show Commission shall forward a report to the General Assembly regarding cats shown within FIFe and its Members based on the statistics received.*


Voting result	Yes	No	Abstentions	Missing
 <b>ACCEPTED</b>	<b>26</b>	<b>12</b>	<b>2</b>	

FIFe Board	Proposal 2	General Rules	Annex 1
Minimum net Judges Allowance per day			

Per ~~show~~ *day the judge officiates at the show* ..... 100.00

Except:

- ~~two-day show (separated by categories), per day the judge officiates ..... 100.00~~
- *per* two-day show (not separated by categories) ..... 160.00

Voting result	Yes	No	Abstentions	Missing
 <b>ACCEPTED</b>	<b>36</b>	<b>3</b>	<b>1</b>	

## Proposals regarding the Standards, General Part & the EMS System


LU	LCC-FFL	Proposal 1	Standards, General Part & EMS System	SPH
<b>Whiskers</b>				

Faults - Head

Addition: *complete absence* ~~lack~~ *of whiskers*

### Remark


In more and more countries, you hear murmurings from authorities about breeding animals without fur and without vibrissae/whiskers. We should take precautions and better explain our animals in the rules.

Voting result	Yes	No	Abstentions	Missing
 <b>WITHDRAWN</b>				

NL	Felikat	Proposal 2	Standards, General Part & EMS System	BLH/BSH
<b>Shaded and shell</b>				

Felikat proposes to re-instate the EMS code 12 for shell in the following BLH/BSH varieties:

COLOUR / FARBE / COULEUR	EMS CODE	Rem./Anm
SILVER <del>TIPPED</del> <i>SHADED/SHELL</i>	BLH/BSH n/a/b/c/o/p s 11/ <b>12</b>	D, G, <del>H</del>
	BLH/BSH d/e/f/g/h/j/q/r s 11/ <b>12</b>	D, G, <del>H</del>
GOLDEN <del>TIPPED</del> <i>SHADED/SHELL</i>	BLH/BSH n/a y 11/ <b>12</b>	D, G, <del>H</del>

Voting result	Yes	No	Abstentions	Missing
 <b>ACCEPTED</b>	<b>22</b>	<b>16</b>	<b>2</b>	

<b>NO</b>	<b>NRR</b>	<b>Proposal 1</b>	<b>Standards, General Part &amp; EMS System</b>	<b>NEM</b>
<b>Change to 6 colour groups</b>				

NRR proposes to increase the number of colour groups for the Neva Masquerade to six. The revised colour groups will follow the grouping of other breeds in Cat 2 (MCO, NFO, SIB) with the exception that silver will not be separated out into its own groups:

**NEM - table of recognised colour varieties → page 31 of these minutes**

Voting result	Yes	No	Abstentions	Missing
<input checked="" type="checkbox"/> <b>ACCEPTED</b>	<b>31</b>	<b>8</b>	<b>1</b>	

<b>FIFe</b>	<b>JSC</b>	<b>Proposal 2</b>	<b>Standards, General Part &amp; EMS System</b>	
<b>CORIN</b>				<b>(new)</b>

### Introduction

This proposal comes as a result of developments in identification of CORIN colour modifiers in a number of recognised breeds within FIFe and proposes a modification to the FIFe EMS system to register these modifiers. This proposal comes after a number of requests from FIFe members who have had problems in registering cats from other cat organisations where these colour modifiers are already recognised.

There is no doubt that FIFe is rather late in modifying/extending the FIFe EMS System to allocate codes for these colours modifiers. Other organisations have had EMS codes in place for a number of years. However, one advantage of this is that FIFe is able to take advantage of a wider range of knowledge and hopefully allocate EMS codes that will remain viable in the future.

### What is CORIN?

It is not easy to explain in layman’s language what CORIN is and how it is involved in the coat colour of cats. In agouti (banded) cat hair there are two types of colour granules, phaeomelanin (red) and eumelanin (black). In the hair, MSH (melanocytes stimulating hormone) causes eumelanin production causing the hair to be black. In the agouti (banded) hair, ASIP (agouti stimulating protein) causes the melanocytes to switch to producing phaeomelanin. CORIN (a protein-coding gene) breaks down ASIP allowing MSH to start producing eumelanin black pigment again. This cycle results in the bands on the hair.

Mutated CORIN takes longer to break down ASIP, which causes phaeomelanin red pigment to be produced for longer and misshapen black pigment during the switchover. This has the general effect of making the coat colour look warmer and brighter.

### Proposal

This proposal considers CORIN mutations seen in SIB/NEM, BLH/BSH and KBL/KBS and is in two parts:

1. Technicalities regarding the acceptance of EMS code and recognition.
2. The implementation of CORIN:
  - a. Allocation of EMS Code “u”
  - b. Updating of the Standards of the affected breeds – table of recognised colour varieties
  - c. Updating of the Standards, General Part – colour descriptions.

#### 1. Technicalities regarding the acceptance of EMS code and recognition

The FIFe JSC does not see this as a new colour variety recognition but rather a colour re-registration as a result of advances in genetic testing for colour. Many cats with these CORIN modifiers have been competing very successfully in FIFe shows as golden and have already achieved the highest FIFe titles including numerous BIS, JW, SW etc.

Therefore, the FIFe JSC does not see a full recognition process as appropriate for CORIN modifiers and requests an exemption from FIFe Breeding and Registration Rules Article 11 – Recognition of new varieties.

#### 2. The implementation of CORIN

##### 2a. Allocation of EMS Code “u”

The FIFe JSC proposes to use the EMS Code ‘u’ for the modifier and it shall be given the generic name “Corin modifier”. This modifier will only be available for use with agouti cats and it will not be available for use with red cats as it only affects eumelanin (black pigment) production into the cat hair.

### Remarks

1. Corin modifier is meant as a generic EMS code for colours that have already been given colour names by breeders within FIFe and in other organisations (copper, akita, sunshine etc). These names will be included in the individual breed standards.

2. The EMS system has always been a system based on phenotype. However, there is certain genetic information that can be important for breeding. It is therefore proposed that the FIFe Breeding and Registration Commission develop an additional coding system whereby the various Corin mutations can be added to the pedigree (not as part of the EMS Code itself).
3. The only method described in the FIFe Rules for changing the EMS Code of a cat is to enter it into Class 13C. Other methods of changing the colour by genetic testing proof need to be evaluated.

2b. Updating of the Standards of the affected breeds – table of recognised colour varieties

SIB - **page 34 of these minutes**  
 NEM - **page 38 of these minutes**  
 BLH/BSH - **page 42 of these minutes**  
~~KBL/KBS – page 45 of these minutes~~

2c. Updating of the Standards, General Part – colour descriptions

These can be found on page 48 of these minutes

Voting result	Yes	No	Abstentions	Missing
<input checked="" type="checkbox"/> <b>REJECTED</b>	<b>15</b>	<b>21</b>	<b>4</b>	

FIFe	JSC	Proposal 3	Standards, General Part & EMS System	
			<b>Elimination of faults in various Standards</b>	<b>reworded</b>

The JSC proposes to eliminate all generic faults from the Standards of the following Breeds:

CAT 1 – RAG  
 CAT 2 – ACL/S, MCO, NFO, SIB/NEM  
 CAT 3 – BEN, BML, BUR, EUR, KBL/S, MAU  
 CAT 4 – SIA, ~~OSH, OLH~~, BAL, SPH, RUS  
 Prelim. – BOM

The **NFO, SIB, NEM, SIA/OSH/OLH/BAL and BML** BCs agreed to delete all unnecessary faults without making further changes to their standards. [For SIA/BAL: also delete the remarks.](#)

For the other breeds mentioned above, the next proposals have been prepared, thanks to the permission granted by the Board, in accordance with § 6.4 of the General Rules, to exceed the number of proposals that the Commission can present.

Voting result	Yes	No	Abstentions	Missing
<input checked="" type="checkbox"/> <b>ACCEPTED</b>	<b>25</b>	<b>10</b>	<b>5</b>	

FIFe	JSC/ BC RAG	Proposal 3.1	Standards, General Part & EMS System	RAG
			<b>Standard RAG</b>	<b>reworded</b>

The JSC, on behalf of the RAG Breed Council proposes the following changes to the RAG Breed Standard:

- to cancel all the **generic faults** and the **remarks**
- the changes as indicated on **page 54 of these minutes**.

**Remark**

If this proposal is accepted, the description of mitted in the General Part shall be updated accordingly.

Voting result	Yes	No	Abstentions	Missing
<input checked="" type="checkbox"/> <b>ACCEPTED</b>	<b>28</b>	<b>7</b>	<b>3</b>	<b>2</b>

FIFe	JSC/BC ACL/ ACS	Proposal 3.2	Standards, General Part & EMS System	ACL/ ACS
			<b>Standard ACL/ACS</b>	

The JSC, on behalf of the ACL/ACS BC proposes the following changes to the ACL/ACS Breed Standard:

- to cancel all the **generic faults**
- the changes as indicated on **page 56 of these minutes**.

Voting result	Yes	No	Abstentions	Missing
<input checked="" type="checkbox"/> <b>ACCEPTED</b>	<b>34</b>	<b>2</b>	<b>4</b>	

FIFe	JSC/ BC MCO	Proposal 3.3	Standards, General Part & EMS System	MCO
Standard MCO				reworded

The JSC, on behalf of the MCO Breed Council proposes the following changes to the MCO Breed Standard:

- to cancel all the **generic faults**, the **remarks** and the **condition**
- the changes as indicated on **page 56 of these minutes**.

Voting result	Yes	No	Abstentions	Missing
<input checked="" type="checkbox"/> <b>ACCEPTED</b>	<b>32</b>	<b>6</b>	<b>0</b>	<b>2</b>

FIFe	JSC/ BC BEN	Proposal 3.4	Standards, General Part & EMS System	BEN
Standard BEN				reworded

The JSC, on behalf of the BEN Breed Council proposes the following changes to the BEN Breed Standard:

- to cancel all the **generic faults** and the **disqualification faults**
- the changes as indicated on **page 58 of these minutes**.

Voting result	Yes	No	Abstentions	Missing
<input checked="" type="checkbox"/> <b>ACCEPTED</b>	<b>36</b>	<b>2</b>	<b>2</b>	

FIFe	JSC/ BC BUR	Proposal 3.5	Standards, General Part & EMS System	BUR
Standard BUR				reworded

The JSC, on behalf of the BUR Breed Council proposes the following changes to the BUR Breed Standard:

- to cancel all the **generic faults**
- the changes as indicated on **page 60 of these minutes**.

Voting result	Yes	No	Abstentions	Missing
<input checked="" type="checkbox"/> <b>ACCEPTED</b>	<b>36</b>	<b>1</b>	<b>2</b>	<b>1</b>

FIFe	JSC/ BC EUR	Proposal 3.6	Standards, General Part & EMS System	EUR
Standard EUR				

The JSC, on behalf of the EUR Breed Council proposes the following changes to the EUR Breed Standard:

- to cancel all the **generic faults**
- the changes as indicated on **page 60 of these minutes**.

Voting result	Yes	No	Abstentions	Missing
<input checked="" type="checkbox"/> <b>ACCEPTED</b>	<b>38</b>	<b>1</b>	<b>1</b>	

FIFe	JSC/ BC KBL/KBS	Proposal 3.7	Standards, General Part & EMS System	KBL/KBS
Standard KBL/KBS				

The JSC, on behalf of the KBL/KBS BC proposes the following changes to the KBL/KBS Breed Standard:

- to cancel all the **generic faults**
- the changes as indicated on **page 60 of these minutes**.

Voting result	Yes	No	Abstentions	Missing
<input checked="" type="checkbox"/> <b>ACCEPTED</b>	<b>37</b>	<b>1</b>	<b>1</b>	<b>1</b>

FIFe	JSC/ BC MAU	Proposal 3.8	Standards, General Part & EMS System	MAU
Standard MAU				

The JSC, on behalf of the MAU Breed Council proposes the following changes to the MAU Breed Standard:

- to cancel all the **generic faults**
- the changes as indicated on **page 61 of these minutes**.

Voting result	Yes	No	Abstentions	Missing
<input checked="" type="checkbox"/> <b>ACCEPTED</b>	<b>36</b>	<b>2</b>	<b>2</b>	

FIFe	JSC/ BC RUS	Proposal 3.9	Standards, General Part & EMS System	RUS
Standard RUS				

The JSC, on behalf of the RUS Breed Council proposes the following changes to the RUS Breed Standard:

- to cancel all the **generic faults**
- the changes as indicated on **page 61 of these minutes**.

Voting result	Yes	No	Abstentions	Missing
<input checked="" type="checkbox"/> <b>ACCEPTED</b>	<b>29</b>	<b>9</b>	<b>2</b>	

FIFe	JSC/ BC SPH	Proposal 3.10	Standards, General Part & EMS System	SPH
Standard SPH				

The JSC, on behalf of the SPH Breed Council proposes the following changes to the SPH Breed Standard:

- to cancel all the **generic faults** and the **remarks**
- the changes as indicated on **page 62 of these minutes**.

Voting result	Yes	No	Abstentions	Missing
<input checked="" type="checkbox"/> <b>ACCEPTED</b>	<b>36</b>	<b>2</b>	<b>2</b>	

FIFe	JSC/ BC BOM	Proposal 3.11	Standards, General Part & EMS System	BOM
Standard BOM				

The JSC, on behalf of the BOM Breed Council proposes the following changes to the BOM Breed Standard:

- to cancel all the **generic faults**
- the changes as indicated on **page 63 of these minutes**.

Voting result	Yes	No	Abstentions	Missing
<input checked="" type="checkbox"/> <b>ACCEPTED</b>	<b>40</b>			

## Proposals regarding the Breeding & Registration Rules

BE	FBE	Proposal 1	Breeding & Registration Rules	§ 5.2.1
Changes of a cattery name				reworded


A cattery name once issued can be changed only **for a very good reason once, upon simple request of the owner. A fee decided by the FIFe General Assembly will be charged. The old cattery name will be automatically deleted after 10 years.**

Voting result	Yes	No	Abstentions	Missing
<input checked="" type="checkbox"/> <b>ACCEPTED</b>	<b>37</b>	<b>3</b>		

CH	FFH	Proposal 1	Breeding & Registration Rules	§ 3.6
Harmonising breed restrictions – Table of faults in Show Rules				


Harmonisation of article 3.6 in the FIFe Breeding & Registration Rules with the table - Disqualifying and general faults of the FIFe Show Rules.

Article 3.6 in the FIFe Breeding & Registration Rules states that cats without whiskers are not allowed for breeding. In the FIFe Show Rules this criterion is missing in the table - Disqualifying and General Faults. We request that the responsible Commissions (BRC and SC) adapt the article, respectively the table in the

Voting result	Yes	No	Abstentions	Missing
 <b>WITHDRAWN</b>				

CH	FFH	Proposal 2	Breeding & Registration Rules	§ 6.14
Maine Coon bicolour with blue eyes				

MCO with blue eyes are only allowed in combination with EMS code w, 01 ~~and~~ 02 ~~and~~ 03.


Voting result	Yes	No	Abstentions	Missing
 <b>ACCEPTED</b>	28	11	1	

DE	1.DEKZV e.V	Proposal 1	Breeding & Registration Rules	§ 6.20
RUS blue point				reworded

The FIFe shall not recognise any variety other than blue ~~and blue pointed~~ in the Russian Blue. The FIFe will not encourage any person or federation to produce colours other than blue ~~and blue pointed~~ in the Russian Blue.

When breeding Russian Blues:

- only blue ~~and blue pointed~~ shorthair progeny from blue ~~or blue pointed~~ parents can be registered as Russian Blue (RUS) ~~respective RUS x a 33~~.
- shorthair progeny in a variety other than blue ~~or blue pointed~~ must be registered as XSH \* <RUS>
- longhair progeny: sister breed Nebelung - NEB non (→ § 8.4)

Voting result	Yes	No	Abstentions	Missing
 <b>REJECTED</b>	20	16	4	

LU	LCC-FFL	Proposal 2	Breeding & Registration Rules	§ 2.2.1
Accommodation – General conditions				reworded

**CORRECTION** concerning the translation to unify the 3 languages:

~~Cats must have adequate space in which to move and play and should enjoy domestic living.~~

~~Cats must have adequate space in which to move and play and should enjoy domestic living conditions with human beings.~~

**ADDITION:**

~~The living accommodation of the cats must have a window with accessible view for the cats.~~

~~The living accommodation of the cats, in or out of domestic environment, must have a minimum of 6 square meters of floor space and for all cat more + 2 m2 more, with a minimum of height of 1,80 m.~~

**CORRECTION and ADDITION** in 4th sentence

~~For cats unused to extreme temperatures, a range between 10° C to 35° C (°F...) is acceptable but~~

Temperatures either.....

~~Operators ensure that the temperature is maintained within the following ranges:~~

~~– 16° C to 27° C (°F...) in the accommodation where adult cats are keep.~~


~~– 18 C to 27°C (°F...) in the accommodation for a planned birth, and for cats with a litter in the first 21 days of the kitten.~~

~~Temperature ranges shall be adapted accordingly for animals with extreme coat types (hairless or heavy coated breeds) and for animals of brachycephalic breed/type. Temperatures either ...~~



Remarks :

- 1) In the 3 FIFe languages, in our rules, there were other and different definitions. We have given the 3 languages a correct and uniform translation.
- 2) Concerning the Addition, we repeatedly hear about cats who live in dark cellars or dark attics below the roof with a small roof hatch. We must make clear definitions of the accommodation conditions, in our rules.
- 3) Temperatures are in the new law of EU for the living accommodation of cats.
- 4) If the proposal is accepted, ° F must also be improved in the rules of FIFe.

Voting result	Yes	No	Abstentions	Missing
 <b>WITHDRAWN</b>				

<b>LU</b>	<b>LCC-FFL</b>	<b>Proposal 3</b>	<b>Breeding &amp; Registration Rules</b>	<b>§ 3.2 + 3.3</b>
<b>Minimum age for Studs / Queens</b>				<b>reworded</b>

**ADDITION** to article 3.2 Studs:


~~Before being used as a stud, the male must be 10 month old.~~

**ADDITION** to article 3.3 Queens:

*Queens must be at least 12 months old to be presented to a stud male for mating. An exception, for possible mating from 10 months, suggested by a veterinarian with the motive, can be requested.*

**Remarks**

Nothing is more important than the health and welfare of our cats. It cannot be the case that cats of 5, 6 or 7 months are used for breeding and then receive FIFe pedigrees. We have to put a minimum age in our rules.

Voting result	Yes	No	Abstentions	Missing
 <b>REJECTED</b>	<b>9</b>	<b>29</b>	<b>1</b>	<b>1</b>


<b>NL</b>	<b>Mundikat</b>	<b>Proposal 2</b>	<b>Breeding &amp; Registration Rules</b>	<b>§ 6.8</b>
<b>JBS – Removal restriction of silver</b>				

**Silver**, shaded, shell, golden, ticked tabby and pointed (i.e. EMS-codes ~~s~~, y, 11, 12, 25, 31, 32 and 33) are not permitted in the Japanese Bobtail Shorthair (JBS) and must be registered as XSH \* <JBS>.

**Remark:** If this proposal is carried, FIFe Breed Standard JBS (coat colour) must also be changed.

The General Secretary asked for the floor and said he would minute this statement. He said that it had been a long painstaking search but the Board established the following. At the GA 2010 a decision was made to copy colour restrictions of breeds as listed in the standards and to insert these in the BRR. In the case of JBS, the words that were copied were the same but the transcription was different. The 2010 Standard stated for JBS, that “All colour varieties were permitted, except silver (shaded/shell), golden, ticked tabby and pointed – i.e. s/y 11, 12, 25 and 31, 32, 33.” The 2010 standard did not mention that silver tabbies or smoke were not allowed for the recognised colour varieties in JBS. Of course, there were not so many JBS/JBL-non bred or shown, so this went unnoticed for a very long time.

He ended by saying that Mundikat’s proposal 2 should be withdrawn and BRR article 6.8 needed to be corrected to the wording above. The varieties silver tabby and smoke were fully recognised in the JBS

Voting result	Yes	No	Abstentions	Missing
 <b>WITHDRAWN</b>				

<b>RO</b>	<b>FAF-FR</b>	<b>Proposal 1</b>	<b>Breeding &amp; Registration Rules</b>	<b>§ 5.2.3</b>
<b>Application for a cattery name</b>				

Individual members of a FIFe organization:

- shall request to register a cattery name in the Book of Cattery Names through their national FIFe Member
- *shall attend as an exhibitor at least once at a FIFe Show, prior requesting to register a cattery name*
- are allowed only one FIFe registered cattery name.

[...]

Voting result	Yes	No	Abstentions	Missing
<input checked="" type="checkbox"/> <b>REJECTED</b>	<b>11</b>	<b>28</b>	<b>1</b>	

FIFe	BRC	Proposal 1	Breeding & Registration Rules	§ 5.1.1
<b>General principles - change age limit from 10 months to 1 year</b>				

Once registered, the EMS code of a cat can be amended upon request of the cat's breeder or owner until the age of ~~10 months~~ **1 year**.

Otherwise such changes may only be made if the amendment has been proven by:

- the genetics of the cat's parents
- its progeny
- a genetic test

or after having been shown in class 13c (Determination class)

or having received a transfer recommendation in accordance with Show Rules § 6.5.

*[rest of article remains unchanged]*

Voting result	Yes	No	Abstentions	Missing
<input checked="" type="checkbox"/> <b>ACCEPTED</b>	<b>38</b>	<b>1</b>	<b>1</b>	

FIFe	BRC	Proposal 2	Breeding & Registration Rules	§ 5.1.2.1 / 6.1.3
<b>Removing special codes for registration – the use of brackets and their meaning</b>				

#### § 5.1.2.1 The use of brackets and their meaning

The meaning of the different types of brackets used in EMS codes to indicate differences in breeding status:

Bracket type	Breeding and registration restrictions
(XXX)	Target breed – Can be used for breeding, can be re-registered (→ § 9.1)
[XXX]	Breeding program – Can be used for breeding, cannot be re-registered
<XXX>	Originating breed – Cannot be used for breeding, cannot be re-registered

XXX means EMS code for the relevant breed

Target breed: (XXX)

An indication of the final goal of a breeding program. All cats in the breeding program must be identified by this to show which breed is the final goal – the target breed.

Cats with this indication can be shown in the Control class (class 13b) to establish if the standard of the target breed has been reached (→ § 9.1).

This type of brackets is also used for Novice cats which can be shown in the Novice class (class 13a) in order to obtain re-registration (→ § 9.2).

Breeding program: [XXX]

Indication for cats which can take part in a breeding programme but cannot be re-registered and cannot be shown in the Control class (class 13b).

Originating breed: <XXX>

Indication for cats belonging to a non-standard variety, which is prohibited in the standard of a breed, but born out of two purebred cats – i.e. both parents must be of the same breed. These cats cannot be used for breeding, cannot be re-registered and cannot be shown in the Control class (class 13b).

#### § 6.1.3 Special restrictions and registration rules for some breeds

Cats with the indication “(<EMS-code of originating breed>)” cannot be used for breeding **without the permission from the FIFe Member**.

*[rest of article remains unchanged]*

Voting result	Yes	No	Abstentions	Missing
<input checked="" type="checkbox"/> <b>ACCEPTED</b>	<b>36</b>	<b>0</b>	<b>4</b>	

FIFe	BRC	Proposal 3	Breeding & Registration Rules	§ 5.1.2.2 / 6.3
<b>Charcoal: EMS code 14 (pattern) instead of t (modifier)</b>				

#### 5.1.2.2 Breed specific modifiers

The EMS code “t” will be used for breed specific modifiers.

The modifier code must be added to the EMS code for colour.

Recognised modifiers:

~~BEN – agouti/non-agouti modifiers – Charcoal (non-recognised variety)~~

NFO – black modifier Amber

For NFO the EMS codes “dt” and “et” may be used to register the genotype of red/cream progeny from two amber / amber carrying cats together with their phenotype “d” respectively “e” in brackets, in accordance with § 5.1.1. The EMS codes “dt” and “et” may only be used for registration purposes.

Registration examples:

~~BEN x nt 24 – Bengal black charcoal spotted (non-recognised variety)~~

NFO at 22 Norwegian Forest Cat light amber blotched

### 6.3 BEN (Bengal)

Novice cats are not permitted. Any crossing with other breeds is prohibited, except with sister breed Bengal Longhair (BGL non). Bengals of generations F1-F4 are not allowed for breeding

Charcoal varieties must be registered as ~~BEN x \*t~~, ~~BEN x \*14~~ i.e. as a non-recognised variety in the RIE X register. Charcoal Bengal can be used in breeding programmes for BEN/BGL non.

Voting result	Yes	No	Abstentions	Missing
<input checked="" type="checkbox"/> <b>ACCEPTED</b>	<b>34</b>	<b>5</b>	<b>1</b>	

FIFe	JSC	Proposal 4	Breeding & Registration Rules	§ 10.2.3/5, 11.2.3/5
<b>Breed lectures on General Assembly Judges Seminar for new breeds/varieties</b>				

#### § 10.2.3 – Step 3 – Propose the preliminary recognition of the new breed

Change the last paragraph.

~~The JSC is to give a short presentation of the breed (preferably with cats present) at the General Assembly.~~  
**The JSC is to organise a lecture on the breed on the judges’ seminar following the General Assembly, with cats of the breed present.**

As a consequence:

#### § 10.2.5 – Step 5 – Propose the full recognition of the new breed

Delete the last paragraph.

~~The JSC is to organise a lecture on the breed on the judges’ seminar following the General Assembly, with cats of the breed present.~~

#### § 11.2.3 – Step 3 – Propose the preliminary recognition of the new variety

Add a last paragraph.

**The JSC is to organise a lecture on the variety on the judges’ seminar following the General Assembly, with cats of the variety being present.**

As a consequence:

#### § 11.2.5 – Step 5 – Propose the full recognition of the new variety

Delete the last paragraph.

~~The JSC is to organise a lecture on the variety on the judges’ seminar following the General Assembly, with cats of the variety being present.~~

Voting result	Yes	No	Abstentions	Missing
<input checked="" type="checkbox"/> <b>ACCEPTED</b>	<b>39</b>	<b>1</b>		

## Proposals regarding the Breed Council Rules

No proposals submitted

## Proposals regarding the Rules for Judges & Student Judges

FI	SK	Proposal 1	Rules for Judges & Student Judges	§ 1.5
<b>Showing cats when officiating as a Judge or a Student Judge</b>				

A Judge or Student Judge may only exhibit their own cats “Out of Competition” at the show where they are officiating.

On a 1-certificate FIFe show, divided in categories **for** 2 or more days, it is not allowed to officiate as a Judge on the one day and exhibit on the other day.

*On a 1-certificate FIFe show, divided in categories for 2 or more days, it is allowed to officiate as a Student Judge on the one day and exhibit on the other day.*

Members of an officiating Student Judge's household may exhibit their own cat(s) at the show, but not in a category or categories in which the Student Judge is officiating at the show.  
Exhibits belonging to members of an officiating Judge's household cannot compete in such a show.

Voting result	Yes	No	Abstentions	Missing
<input checked="" type="checkbox"/> <b>ACCEPTED</b>	<b>38</b>	<b>2</b>		

FIFe	JSC	Proposal 5	Rules for Judges & Student Judges	§ 2.1.15
				<b>reworded</b>

Certain groups of colours/patterns must have been examined (solid, bicolour, tabby, silver/golden, pointed).

*The JSC will organize online breed lectures on "rare breeds." These lectures will not contribute to the number of cats seen by the Student but will allow him to apply for the judges' examination without asking for exceptions. Breed lectures can be requested to the JSC by the Members or by the Board when at least 3 applications have been received.*

*Breed lectures will be listed in the official FIFe calendar at least one month prior to its date.*

*A Certificate of Attendance will be issued by email within two weeks after a breed lecture to each Judge and Student Judge who remained in attendance for the whole online session.*

*The list of "rare breeds" is maintained and updated by the FIFe Board recommended by the Judges & Standard Commission. Currently the following breeds are listed: JBS, LPL/LPS, MAN/CYM and SOK.*

The FIFe Board may grant exceptions to this rule when a candidate applies for his final examination in accordance with the geographic situation of that candidate. ~~However, such exception(s) must be fulfilled during the stage(s) as a Probational Judge.~~

Voting result	Yes	No	Abstentions	Missing
<input checked="" type="checkbox"/> <b>ACCEPTED</b>	<b>39</b>		<b>1</b>	

FIFe	JSC	Proposal 6	Rules for Judges & Student Judges	§ 2.2.1 b)
				<b>Compulsory Training Seminars for Student Judges online</b>

Change the following sentence:

~~The Seminar will be arranged as needed in different parts of Europe and will take place at week-ends. The minimum duration must be one day.~~

*The Seminar will be arranged as an online seminar, with a minimum duration of 2 days*

Voting result	Yes	No	Abstentions	Missing
<input checked="" type="checkbox"/> <b>ACCEPTED</b>	<b>38</b>	<b>2</b>		

FIFe	JSC	Proposal 7	Rules for Judges & Student Judges	§ 2.3.3, 2.3.5, 4.2.1
				<b>Language of final Judges Exam: only English</b>

The JSC proposes to have the Final Judge's Exam only in **English**.

**Remark:** If the proposal is accepted, all references to the Exam languages must be updated.

Voting result	Yes	No	Abstentions	Missing
<input checked="" type="checkbox"/> <b>ACCEPTED</b>	<b>33</b>	<b>7</b>		

FIFe	JSC	Proposal 8	Rules for Judges & Student Judges	§ 2.4.4
				<b>Examination in further categories</b>


A Judge intending to sit an exam his second category must meet the following requirement

- he must have judged a minimum of 4 times after his appointment date as an International Judge in the category for which he qualified (**min. 50 cats**).

Voting result	Yes	No	Abstentions	Missing
<input checked="" type="checkbox"/> <b>ACCEPTED</b>	<b>30</b>	<b>7</b>	<b>1</b>	<b>2</b>

FIFe Board Proposal 3	Rules for Judges & Student Judges	§ 3.12
Deletion of Dormant Judges		(new article)

*Dormant Judges who have not requested reactivation (→ § 3.11) within a time frame of 5 years, shall be deleted from the Judges List.*


Voting result	Yes	No	Abstentions	Missing
 <b>WITHDRAWN</b>				

## Proposals regarding the Show Rules

BE FBE Proposal 2	Show Rules	§ 8.2
Open Doors – deletion of sentence		

### 8.2 Open Doors


2. Exhibitors belonging to any non-FIFe organisation may enter cats at FIFe shows under the following conditions:
  - a. all non-FIFe exhibitors must agree to respect all FIFe Rules and Standards
  - ~~b. they may only enter their cats in classes 12, 11 and 9 or 10; if they wish to enter cats in higher classes, they should become individual members of a FIFe Member~~
  - c. applications from non-FIFe exhibitors should be sent according to the instructions of the organisers
  - d. entry fees from non-FIFe exhibitors should be paid according to the instructions of the organisers.

Voting result	Yes	No	Abstentions	Missing
 <b>WITHDRAWN</b>				

BG FBBg Proposal 1	Show Rules	§ 2.6.6
Move Bulgaria from Mediterranean Winner group to Black Sea Winner group		

In line with art.§ 2.6.6 we request to delete the FIFe probational member FFBg from the Mediterranean Winner Show list and add FFBg to the Black Sea Winner Show organizers list.

Mediterranean Winner Show	<del>Bulgaria</del> , Croatia, France, Greece, Italy, Portugal, Slovenia, Spain
Black Sea Winner Show	<del>Bulgaria</del> , Moldova, Romania, Ukraine

– Voting result	Yes	No	Abstentions	Missing
 <b>ACCEPTED</b>	<b>39</b>	<b>1</b>		

FFB Proposal 1	Show Rules	<del>§ 4.3, § 4.4, § 4.5</del>
Changes of the requirements for achieving International Titles		reworded

The FFB delegate, Mr Rodrigo Araújo asked his words to be minuted. He stated that this proposal did not affect any of the other existing annexes.

### ~~Obtaining the title International Champion or International Premier~~

~~Provided the exhibit has obtained at least the minimum number of required points (6.9):~~

- ~~— CACIB is awarded in the Champion class (class 7)~~
- ~~— CAPIB is awarded in the Premier class (class 8).~~

~~In order to obtain the title International Champion or Premier, a cat must have been awarded:~~

- ~~— 3 (three) CACIB respectively CAPIB~~
- ~~— by 3 (three) different judges~~
- ~~— in at least 2 different countries **OR at least one show must be 300km away from the other ones**~~
- ~~— during 3 (three) international FIFe shows.~~

~~A maximum of 2 (two) CACIB respectively CAPIB could be obtained in the same country.~~

~~Exceptions are made for individual members residing in countries outlined in Annexes 2, 3 and 4.~~

~~Exception is made for individual members residing in a location where there is just one place where shows are organized up to 400km from him. These members can achieve titles on shows organized by the clubs near him.~~

**Obtaining the title Grand International Champion or Grand International Premior**

Provided the exhibit has obtained at least the minimum number of required points (6.9):

- CAGCIB is awarded in the International Champion class (class 5)
- CAGPIB is awarded in the International Premior class (class 6).

In order to obtain the title **Grand International Champion or Premior**, a cat must have been awarded:

a.

- 6 (six) CAGCIB respectively CAGPIB
- by at least 3 (three) different judges
- in at least 3 different countries **OR at least two shows must be 300km away from the other ones**
- during 6 (six) international FIFe shows.

A maximum of 4 (four) CAGCIB respectively CAGPIB could be obtained in the same country

**Exception is made for individual members residing in a location where there is just one place where shows are organized up to 400km from him. These members can achieve all titles on the shows organized by the clubs near him.**

OR if the requirements of §4.4 are not achieved after the cat has obtained 6 (six) CAGCIB / CAGPIB:

b.

- 8 (eight) CAGCIB respectively CAGPIB
- by at least 4 (four) different judges
- in at least 2 (two) different countries
- during 8 (eight) international FIFe shows.

A maximum of 7 (seven) CAGCIB resp. CAGPIB could be obtained in the same country.

Exceptions are made for individual members residing in countries as outlined in Annexes 3 and 4.

**Obtaining the title Supreme Champion or Supreme Premior**

Provided the exhibit has obtained at least the minimum number of required points (6.9):

- CACS is awarded in the Grand International Champion class (class 3)
- CAPS is awarded in the Grand International Premior class (class 4).

In order to obtain the title **Supreme Champion or Supreme Premior**, a cat must have been awarded:

a.

- 9 (nine) CACS respectively CAPS
- by at least 3 (three) different judges
- in at least 3 different countries **OR at least two shows must be 300km away from the other ones**
- during 9 (nine) international FIFe shows.

A maximum of 7 (seven) CACS respectively CAPS could be obtained in the same country.

**Exception is made for individual members residing in a location with is just one place where shows are organized up to 400km away. These members can achieve all titles on shows organized by clubs near him.**

OR if the requirements of §4.5.a are not fulfilled after the cat has obtained 9 (nine) CACS / CAPS:

b.

- 11 (eleven) CACS respectively CAPS
- by at least 6 (six) different judges
- in at least 2 (two) different countries
- during 11 (eleven) international FIFe shows.

A maximum of 10 (ten) CACS respectively CAPS could be obtained in the same country.

Exceptions are made for individual members residing in countries as outlined in Annexes 3 and 4.

– Voting result	Yes	No	Abstentions	Missing
<input checked="" type="checkbox"/> <b>ACCEPTED</b>	<b>28</b>	<b>12</b>		

BY / CN / RU	Felinolog / CCU / FRU	Joint proposal	Show Rules	§ 2.6.6 / § 4.1.1
<b>Eurasian Winner Show</b>				<b>(new)</b>

Article 2.6.6: Addition to the table of Winner Shows

<b>Name of show</b>	<b>Organising FIFe Member countries</b>
<b>Eurasian Winner Show</b>	<b>Belarus, China, Russia</b>

Article 4.1.1: Addition to the table of Winner titles

<b>Winner titles</b>
<b>Eurasian Winner</b>   <b>EAW</b>

– Voting result	Yes	No	Abstentions	Missing
<input checked="" type="checkbox"/> <b>ACCEPTED</b>	<b>26</b>	<b>10</b>	<b>4</b>	


ID / CN / MY	ICA / CCU / KKM	Joint proposal	Show Rules	§ 2.6.6 / § 4.1.1
Asia Pacific Winner Show				(new)

Article 2.6.6: Addition to the table of Winner Shows

Name of show	Organising FIFe Member countries
<a href="#">Asia Pacific Winner Show</a>	<a href="#">Indonesia, China, Malaysia</a>


Article 4.1.1: Addition to the table of Winner titles

Winner titles
<a href="#">Asia Pacific Winner</a> <a href="#">APW</a>

Voting result	Yes	No	Abstentions	Missing
 <b>WITHDRAWN</b>				


DE / BE	1.DEKZV e.V. / FBe	Joint Proposal 2	Show Rules	§ 8.2
Open Doors				reworded

1. Permit non-FIFe members to participate as exhibitors at FIFe shows and permit individual FIFe members to exhibit at non-FIFe shows.
2. Exhibitors belonging to any non-FIFe organisation may enter cats at FIFe shows under the following conditions:
  - a. all non-FIFe exhibitors must agree to respect all FIFe Rules and Standards
  - ~~b. they may only enter their cats in classes 12, 11 and 9 or 10; if they wish to enter cats in higher classes, they should become individual members of a FIFe Member~~
  - ~~b. non-FIFe exhibitors can enter their cats in all classes. The titles achieved may only be registered with one FIFe member. The exhibitor's legal registration address specifies which FIFe member does the registration.~~
  - b. FIFe Members may decide in which classes non-FIFe exhibitors can enter their cats:
    - o none, or
    - o in classes 12, 11, 9 and 10, or
    - o in all classes
  - c. applications from non-FIFe exhibitors should be sent according to the instructions of the organiser
  - d. entry fees from non-FIFe exhibitors should be paid in according to the instructions of the organiser.
3. FIFe certificates may only be obtained at FIFe shows and are the only certificates valid to obtain FIFe titles

Voting result	Yes	No	Abstentions	Missing
 <b>ACCEPTED</b>	<b>31</b>	<b>8</b>	<b>1</b>	

DK / FD	Proposal 1	Show Rules	§ 1.17.c
Configuration of show cages			

- *In case of ring configuration of the cages, metal cages must have curtains, providing safety and fully covering 2-sides of the cage, to protect the cat from other cats.*
- *In case of back-to-back configuration, metal cages must have curtains fully covering at least 3 sides of the cage, to protect the cat from other cats.*
- *Food, water and litterbox must be available to cats at least 50% of the duration of the show day.*
- *The bottom of the cage must be covered with material ensuring the cat's comfort.*
- *Provide the cat with the possibility of undisturbed rest for instance in the form of a tent, shelter, or an extra curtain.*

Voting result	Yes	No	Abstentions	Missing
 <b>ACCEPTED</b>	<b>37</b>	<b>1</b>	<b>2</b>	

DK / FD	Proposal 2	Show Rules	§ 3.3.1
Showing kittens and juniors consecutive weekends			
reworded			

§ 3.3 Minimum age - **3.3.1.**

The minimum age of a cat must be at least 4 months during the show.

This rule applies to International and National Shows, Seminars and Breed and Propaganda Shows.

**ADDITION 3.3.2.**

~~Exhibitors must always mind not over-showing a cat to the extent that it will affect the cat's health in a negative way.~~

*Kittens and Juniors shown in classes 11, 12 and 14 can only be shown during 2 consecutive weekends and must then have a break during the following weekend.*

Voting result	Yes	No	Abstentions	Missing
<input checked="" type="checkbox"/> <b>ACCEPTED</b>	<b>21</b>	<b>17</b>	<b>2</b>	

<b>DK FD</b>	<b>Proposal 3</b>	<b>Show Rules</b>	<b>§ 6.5</b>
<b>Class changes only after acceptance by the show secretariat</b>			<b>reworded</b>

A judge cannot transfer an exhibit from one variety, group or breed to another ~~class~~, variety, group or breed unless an administrative error is established by the show secretariat.

[A change of class is only possible after the approval of the show secretariat.](#)

Voting result	Yes	No	Abstentions	Missing
<input checked="" type="checkbox"/> <b>ACCEPTED</b>	<b>39</b>	<b>1</b>		

<b>FI SK</b>	<b>Proposal 2</b>	<b>Show Rules</b>	<b>§ 1.1</b>
<b>Deletion</b>			

1.1 General conditions and restrictions

- a. ~~No shows may be held during the weekend immediately following the General Assembly.~~
- b. The most recent version of the FIFe show calendar is published on the FIFe website.
- c. Any appeal against a show can be made to the shows up to two years in advance.
- d. Shows can be held on any day of the week.

– Voting result	Yes	No	Abstentions	Missing
<input checked="" type="checkbox"/> <b>ACCEPTED</b>	<b>26</b>	<b>11</b>	<b>3</b>	

<b>FI SK</b>	<b>Proposal 3</b>	<b>Show Rules</b>	<b>Annex 2</b>
<b>Exception of titles IC/IP</b>			

Permit all certificates to be granted in one country for the title:

- International Champion/Premior: 5 CACIB/CAPIB by at least 3 different judges.

This is only valid for Belarus, *Finland*, Italy, Norway, Portugal, Russia, Spain and Ukraine until 31.12.2026

Voting result	Yes	No	Abstentions	Missing
<input checked="" type="checkbox"/> <b>WITHDRAWN</b>				

<b>FR FFF</b>	<b>Proposal 1</b>	<b>Show Rules</b>	<b>Annex 2</b>
<b>Exception for titles IC/IP</b>			

Permit all certificates to be granted in one country for the title:

- International Champion/Premior: 5 CACIB/CAPIB by at least 3 different judges.

This is only valid for Belarus, *France*, Italy, Norway, Portugal, Russia, Spain and Ukraine until 31.12.2026.

Voting result	Yes	No	Abstentions	Missing
<input checked="" type="checkbox"/> <b>WITHDRAWN</b>				

<b>HU FH</b>	<b>Proposal 1</b>	<b>Show Rules</b>	<b>§ 2.3 d</b>
<b>World Show - no qualification for kittens (class 12)</b>			

Class 12 (kittens)

~~1x Excellent 1 in class 12~~ *No qualification needed*

Voting result	Yes	No	Abstentions	Missing
<input checked="" type="checkbox"/> <b>ACCEPTED</b>	<b>27</b>	<b>12</b>	<b>1</b>	



ID / MY	ICA / KKM	Joint proposal	Show Rules	Annex
Exception for titles KCH / JCH				(new)

We propose the following for classes 11 & 12 to be valid for Indonesia & Malaysia as from 01.06.2024.

*Permit all certificates to be granted in one country for the title:*

*Kitten Champion: 3 CACC by at least 2 different judges (only for Indonesia and Malaysia)*

*Junior Champion: 3 CACJ by at least 2 different judges (only for Indonesia and Malaysia).*

– Voting result	Yes	No	Abstentions	Missing
<input checked="" type="checkbox"/> ACCEPTED	37	2	1	

IT	ANFI	Proposal 1	Show Rules	§ 5.4
Change of ages in classes 9/10 and 11/12				

#### Class 9: Open class

This class is open to cats which are aged at least ~~12~~ 10 months during the show, in consideration of § 1.17.e and § 3.1. In this class a CAC is awarded.

#### Class 10: Neuter class

This class is open to castrated cats which are aged at least ~~12~~ 10 months during the show, in consideration of § 1.17.e and § 3.1. In this class a CAP is awarded.

#### Class 11: Junior (~~8-12~~ 7-10 months) class

This class is open to cats which are aged ~~8~~ 7 months during the show, but not yet ~~12~~ 10 months old, in consideration of § 1.17.e and § 3.1.

#### Class 12: Kitten (~~4-8~~ 4-7 months) class

This class is open to cats which are aged 4 months during the show, but not yet ~~8~~ 7 months old, in consideration of § 1.17.e and § 3.1.

Voting result	Yes	No	Abstentions	Missing
<input checked="" type="checkbox"/> WITHDRAWN				

LT	LFA-Bubaste	Proposal 1	Show Rules	Annex 2
Exception for titles IC/IP				

Permit all certificates to be granted in one country for the title:

- International Champion/Premior: 5 CACIB/CAPIB by at least 3 different judges.

This exception is for Belarus, Italy, *Lithuania*, Norway, Portugal, Russia, Spain and Ukraine until 31.12.2026

Voting result	Yes	No	Abstentions	Missing
<input checked="" type="checkbox"/> WITHDRAWN				

MY	KKM	Proposal 1	Show Rules	§ 5.4
Change in class 13c				reworded

We propose the following exception in a new Annex to the Show Rules, only for Malaysia, Class 13c

Determination Class -*can be done by 1 2-different judges on a separate show.*

– Voting result	Yes	No	Abstentions	Missing
<input checked="" type="checkbox"/> ACCEPTED	38	2		

MY	KKM	Proposal 2	Show Rules	Annex 4B
Exception for titles CH/PR/IC/IP				reworded


We propose the following exceptions to the Show Rules in classes 7–10 valid for Malaysia as of 01.06.2024:

- 3x CAC/CAP *in 1 country, awarded by at least 2 different judges*
- 3x CACIB/CAPIB *in 1 country, awarded by at least 2 different judges.*

– Voting result	Yes	No	Abstentions	Missing
<input checked="" type="checkbox"/> ACCEPTED	38	1	1	

NL Felikat	Proposal 3	Show Rules	§ 2.3 d
World Show – no qualification needed for kittens (class 12)			

Class 12 (kittens): ~~1x Excellent 1 in class 12~~ *No qualifications needed, kittens are automatically qualified*

Voting result	Yes	No	Abstentions	Missing
 <b>WITHDRAWN</b>				

NO NRR	Proposal 2	Show Rules	§ 1.18
Responsibilities of the exhibitor			(new)

a. *In the show cage, the cat shall have access to water, food and litter tray throughout most of the exhibition day.*

Voting result	Yes	No	Abstentions	Missing
 <b>WITHDRAWN</b>				


NO NRR	Proposal 3	Show Rules	Annex 2
Exception for titles GIC/GIP			

**Annex 2 – Number of certificates, countries and judges for the titles IC/IP and GIC/GIP**

Permit all certificates to be granted in one country for the title:

- International Champion/Premior: 5 CACIB/CAPIB by at least 3 different judges.  
This exception is valid for Belarus, Italy, Norway, Portugal, Russia, Spain and Ukraine.
- *Grand International Champion/Premior: 10 CAGCIB/CAGPIB by at least 5 different judges.*  
*This exception is valid for Norway.*

These exceptions are valid until 31.12.2026.

Voting result	Yes	No	Abstentions	Missing
 <b>WITHDRAWN</b>				

PL FPL	Proposal 1	Show Rules	§ 2.6.6
Inclusion in Central European Winner group			

Central European Winner Show	Austria, Czech Republic, Hungary, <i>Poland</i> , Slovakia
------------------------------	--

Voting result	Yes	No	Abstentions	Missing
 <b>ACCEPTED</b>	<b>40</b>			

PL FPL	Proposal 2	Show Rules	§ 4.9.1+§ 4.9.3
Nominations and BIS for males and females in classes 11 and 12			reworded

**4.9.1 Nomination for Best in Show (NOM)**

Each judge may nominate one exhibit in each category (→ page 36) he is judging as:

- adult male , - adult female, - adult neuter male,- adult neuter female
- junior *male (not divided by sex)*
- *junior female*
- kitten *male (not divided by sex)*
- *kitten female*

**4.9.3 Best in Show (BIS) (...)**

Each category can have ~~six (6)~~ *eight (8)* Best in Show titles:

- adult male, - adult female, - adult neuter male,- adult neuter female
- junior *male (not divided by sex)*
- *junior female*
- kitten *male (not divided by sex)*
- *kitten female (...)*

*At the show organiser's discretion:*

- *the Best in Show junior male and Best in Show junior female may compete together for Best in Show junior (BIS) versus Best in Show Opposite Sex junior (BOS)*
- *the Best in Show kitten male and Best in Show kitten female may compete together for Best in Show kitten (BIS) versus BIS in Show Opposite Sex kitten (BOS)*

– Voting result	Yes	No	Abstentions	Missing
<input checked="" type="checkbox"/> <b>ACCEPTED</b>	<b>26</b>	<b>11</b>	<b>3</b>	

Mr Steven Jones asked for the floor and asked this proposal to be valid at the 2024 World Show in Norway. This would be an excellent occasion to try out the ins and outs of having 8 World Winners more. He asked the Assembly for its permission. The President answered, referring to article 4.8 of the Statutes that she was required to propose this to the Assembly, and she would. She asked if the General Assembly agreed to allow NRR to implement these new BIS nominations and Best in Shows at this years' World Show.

– Voting result	Yes	No	Abstentions	Missing
<input checked="" type="checkbox"/> <b>ACCEPTED</b>	<b>37</b>	<b>2</b>	<b>1</b>	

To clarify, the President stated that this exception was only granted to the 2024 World Show and no other exceptions would be granted by the Board.

PL	FPL	Proposal 3	Show Rules	Annex 2
<b>Exception for titles IC/IP</b>				

Permit all certificates to be granted in one country for the title:

- International Champion/Premior: 5 CACIB/CAPIB by at least three different judges.

This exception is for Belarus, Italy, Norway, **Poland**, Portugal, Russia, Spain and Ukraine until 31.12.2026.

Voting result	Yes	No	Abstentions	Missing
<input checked="" type="checkbox"/> <b>WITHDRAWN</b>				

RO	FAF-FR	Proposal 2	Show Rules	§ 4.3
<b>Obtaining the title International Champion or International Premior</b>				<b>reworded</b>

Provided the exhibit has obtained at least the minimum number of required points (→ § 6.9):

- CACIB is awarded in the Champion class (class 7)
- CAPIB is awarded in the Premior class (class 8).

In order to obtain the title International Champion or International Premior, a cat must have been awarded:

- **4 (four)** CACIB respectively CAPIB
- by **at least** 3 (three) different judges

~~in at least 2 (two) different countries~~

- during **4 (four)** international FIFe shows.

~~A maximum of 2 (two) CACIB respectively CAPIB could be obtained in the same country. Exceptions are made for individual members residing in countries outlined in Annexes 2, 3 and 4.~~

**Remark:** If this proposal is carried, the exceptions for ~~individual~~ Members in Annex 2 are to be deleted **and those in Annex 3 should be amended**.

– Voting result	Yes	No	Abstentions	Missing
<input checked="" type="checkbox"/> <b>ACCEPTED</b>	<b>30</b>	<b>9</b>	<b>1</b>	

Mrs Lind asked if this new rule could be valid earlier because many Members already had an exception to this rule. The Board quickly discussed this question and the General Secretary announced, that all exceptions in place, were granted until the end of June, because the Board wanted to wait for a General Assembly decision on this matter. Seeing this proposal was approved, the Board decided that this new rule would be valid in FIFe as of 01.07.2024.

RO	FAF-FR	Proposal 3	Show Rules	§ 4.19
<b>New title: International Winner</b>				<b>(new)</b>

FIFe Members may award the title International Winner (IW) annually according to their own criteria which must be published in advance of the relevant year.

The following conditions must be met:

1. FIFe Members may award a maximum of 15 cats the IW title in any single calendar year; cats may only obtain one IW title in any single calendar year.
2. Such cats must have competed in the show classes 1 - 12 or 14 at shows during the relevant year; FIFe Members may decide a minimum number of shows.

3. FIFe Members may only base the competition for IW titles on the results of shows organised by FIFe Members outside their countries.
4. FIFe Members may only award the IW title to cats of fully recognized breeds registered in their own Pedigree Book (as well as house cats), which belong to their own individual members.
5. The winning cats will have their IW title, also mentioning the year, registered in the same way as other official FIFe titles (→ § 4.1.1).
6. The names of the International Winner cats must be published.

– Voting result	Yes	No	Abstentions	Missing
<input checked="" type="checkbox"/> <b>ACCEPTED</b>	<b>24</b>	<b>15</b>	<b>1</b>	

<b>SE SVERAK Proposal 1 Show Rules § 3.7</b>
<b>Cages</b>

3.7 ~~Locking of cages~~ **Cages**

- a) It is prohibited – under penalty of exclusion from competition – to lock the cages with padlocks and/or to let cats change cages before judging is finished.
- b) *The place where the cat spends most of the show day, i. e. the show cage, must be furnished so that the cat has somewhere to seek shelter and the opportunity to do its needs in a natural way. The cat must, in the same cage, for most of the day have access to drinking water.*

Voting result	Yes	No	Abstentions	Missing
<input checked="" type="checkbox"/> <b>WITHDRAWN</b>				

<b>SE SVERAK Proposal 2 Show Rules § 4.3</b>
<b>Obtaining the title International Champion or International Premior</b>

Provided the exhibit has obtained at least the minimum number of required points (→ § 6.9):

- CACIB is awarded in the Champion class (class 7)
- CAPIB is awarded in the Premior class (class 8).

In order to obtain the title International Champion or International Premior, a cat must have been awarded:

- a.
  - 3 (three) CACIB respectively CAPIB
  - by 3 (three) different judges
  - in at least 2 (two) different countries
  - during 3 (three) international FIFe shows.

A maximum of 2 (two) CACIB respectively CAPIB could be obtained in the same country.

*Or if the terms in 4.3.a. are not met when the cat has received 3 (three) CACIB respective CAPIB*

- b.
  - *5 (five) CACIB respectively CAPIB*
  - *by 3 (three) different judges*
  - *in one county*
  - *during 5 (five) international FIFe shows.*

Exceptions are made for individual members residing in countries outlined in Annexes ~~2, 3 and 4~~.

Voting result	Yes	No	Abstentions	Missing
<input checked="" type="checkbox"/> <b>WITHDRAWN</b>				

<b>SE SVERAK Proposal 3 Show Rules Annex 2</b>
<b>Exception for titles IC/IP</b>

Permit all certificates to be granted in one country for the title:

- International Champion/Premior: 5 CACIB/CAPIB by at least three different judges.

This exception is for Belarus, Italy, Norway, Portugal, Russia, Spain, **Sweden** and Ukraine until 31.12.2026.

Voting result	Yes	No	Abstentions	Missing
<input checked="" type="checkbox"/> <b>WITHDRAWN</b>				

FIFe	SC, Board, JSC, DC, PRC, HWC	Proposal 1	Show Rules	§ 1, § 1.1, § 1.2, § 1.2.1, § 1.2.2
General, Cat Shows, Code of Ethic for Exhibitors, Principles being the Exhibitor at FIFe Shows, Code of Ethic and responsibility of a FIFe Member				(new)

**1. General**

1.1 Cat Shows

Cat shows are one of the most important promotion events and the presentation of the cat fancy. Besides web sites and social media, cat shows are the most important tools of cat fancy to educate the public about cats of domestic origin, pedigreed or not, and to promote the welfare and a good life for all cats. Information about the cat fancy brought to the community through newspapers, radio, television and social media will normally take place in connection with local cat shows. A cat show is the arena where many potential cat fanciers become active after having been a visitor. Cat shows are also the place where the exhibitors from different international Members meet, where they compete with their cats and where they have the possibility to exchange experiences with each other.

1.2 Code of Ethics for Exhibitors

1.2.1 Principles being the Exhibitor at FIFe Shows

Exhibitors are, besides the cats themselves and the FIFe Judges, one of most important promoters of the cat fancy and have great responsibilities toward the values and principles promoted by the Federation.

Exhibitors, whether only exhibitors or also breeders, are usually the first contact and their behaviour and attitude are among the first impressions people outside the cat fancy experience. They are expected to:

- show knowledge about cats and breeds, about the welfare of cats, about how to take proper care of them and their needs, and the understanding of a cat’s behaviour
- show knowledge about FIFe and understanding of the basic values and principles identifying the organisation,
- be able to communicate with other exhibitors and other people (e.g. visitors, judges, show organizers) always in a respectful manner, showing tolerance towards each other, despite possible differences, different opinions and different cultural and educational backgrounds; always maintain self-control, support each other in our common interests and goals, and never engage in transgressive behaviour (e.g. harassing, bullying or threatening etc.),
- demonstrate a welcoming atmosphere in the show hall and on social media to influence the public’s positive opinion and attitude towards cats, encourage others to become interested in cat fancy and to join us in common goals for the welfare of cats.

1.2.2 Code of Ethics and responsibility of a FIFe Member

Exhibitors and Breeders are representatives of FIFe and the FIFe Member they belong to and shall conduct themselves as such.

They shall always display a considerate and caring attitude and courteous behaviour whether verbal, written and/or as demonstrated by physical actions.

Whether exhibiting or visiting a show, they shall not cause disruption during or after the show. Social media is considered an extension of the physical public space and respectful behaviour is expected there as well.

Exhibitors and Breeders are the responsibility of the Member to which they belong.

The Member is responsible to act against such Exhibitors and Breeders who do not respect this code of ethics, whether such behaviour is officially lodged in a complaint. or only reported or noticed. This applies to any inappropriate behaviour in connection with cat shows, as well as on social media.

**Remark:** If this proposal is carried, renumber articles under existing article 1, the organisation of national and international shows to 1.3 The organisation of national and international shows and all sub articles of 1.3.1.

**This code of Ethics would be valid with immediate effect after the General Assembly.**

– Voting result	Yes	No	Abstentions	Missing
<input checked="" type="checkbox"/> <b>ACCEPTED</b>	<b>40</b>			

FIFe	SC	Proposal 2	Show Rules	§ 1.8
Conditions for an international show – min. 120 cats				

A show called “International” must satisfy the following conditions:

[...]

e. At least ~~450~~ **120** cats, [...]

f. [...] with less than ~~450~~ **120** cats up to a minimum number of 100 cats. [...]

Voting result	Yes	No	Abstentions	Missing
 <b>WITHDRAWN</b>				

FIFe	SC	Proposal 3	Show Rules	§ 1.10
<b>The organiser's responsibility</b>				

Delete from article:

f. make judging cages (near the judge's table in the judge's ring) available. ~~for a minimum number of 4 cats.~~

Voting result	Yes	No	Abstentions	Missing
<input checked="" type="checkbox"/> <b>ACCEPTED</b>	<b>37</b>	<b>3</b>		

FIFe	SC	Proposal 4	Show Rules	§ 1.15
<b>Cats appearing in the catalogue</b>				

Delete from article:

All entries in the catalogue are liable for payment of the entry fee even in case of absence.

If the exhibitor is unable to attend due to unforeseen circumstances before closing date (~~date of postmarked letter is decisive~~), he is obliged to inform the organisers in writing.

Voting result	Yes	No	Abstentions	Missing
<input checked="" type="checkbox"/> <b>ACCEPTED</b>	<b>40</b>			

FIFe	SC	Proposal 5	Show Rules	§ 2.3
<b>Qualifications for the World Show</b>				

Delete the whole article 2.3 Qualifications for the World Show

Remark: If this proposal is carried, article 2.6.4 must be also deleted.

Voting result	Yes	No	Abstentions	Missing
<input checked="" type="checkbox"/> <b>REJECTED</b>	<b>9</b>	<b>31</b>		

FIFe	SC	Proposal 6	Show Rules	§ 2.7
<b>Specific rules for World Show and Winner Shows</b>				

Add a new sentence after the article title and reorganize the article by paragraphs:

- a. *The World Show and Winners Shows cannot be combined with any other type of show.*
- b. During the World Show...
- c. FIFe Members...
- d. Certificates ...

Voting result	Yes	No	Abstentions	Missing
<input checked="" type="checkbox"/> <b>ACCEPTED</b>	<b>27</b>	<b>11</b>	<b>2</b>	

FIFe	SC	Proposal 7	Show Rules	§ 2.7
<b>Specific rules for World Show and Winner Shows</b>				<b>reworded</b>

Reorganize the article by paragraphs and add new 5<sup>th</sup> paragraph:

[...]

- d. Certificates ...
- e. *BEST IN VARIETY – BIV: In case of a larger number (at least 5 males and 5 females) of competitors, adults, respectively neuters Best in Variety will be chosen separately by sex.*

– Voting result	Yes	No	Abstentions	Missing
<input checked="" type="checkbox"/> <b>ACCEPTED</b>	<b>37</b>	<b>2</b>	<b>1</b>	

FIFe	SC	Proposal 8	Show Rules	§ 4.9.1
<b>Nominations for Best in Show (NOM)</b>				


Each judge may nominate one exhibit in each category (→ page 36) he is judging as:

[...]

- junior 8-12 months **male** (~~not divided by sex~~)
- **junior 8-12 months female**
- kitten 4-8 months **male** (~~not divided by sex~~)
- **kitten 4-8 months female**.

**Remark**

If this proposal is carried, as a consequence, § 4.9.2, 3<sup>rd</sup> and 4<sup>th</sup> paragraph must be adjusted with same text as stated in 1<sup>st</sup> and 2<sup>nd</sup> paragraph of the same article: ..., or by another junior of the opposite sex in the same variety and ..., or by another kitten of the opposite sex in the same variety

Voting result	Yes	No	Abstentions	Missing
 <b>WITHDRAWN</b>				

## Other Proposals

	Fédération Féline Française	(FR) FFF
---	-----------------------------	-------------

FR	FFF	Proposal 2	Other proposals
<b>Global software</b>			

FIFe currently has 41 members in 39 countries and each of them uses its own software for managing its exhibition data.

Since all these computer programs are different and not interconnected it would make sense to set up a joint system for all member countries in order to standardize the software internationally and enhance communication between member countries.


The software creation could be financed by a one-off payment to FIFe from about EUR 500 to EUR 1000 per member. This amount (from about EUR 21000 to EUR 42000) would enable FIFe to have the necessary program set up professionally.


A single system would facilitate not only the registration of titles obtained with certificates from abroad but also the approval of registrations to exhibitions abroad.

All documents would be standardised worldwide and a server with a database of all FIFe-registered cats would be available to all members.

Each member would pay a lump sum and could possibly divide the cost over its individual clubs.

Some countries already have good programs. One of these could be upgraded to become the global program used and financed by all requesting members

Voting result	Yes	No	Abstentions	Missing
 <b>REJECTED</b>	<b>20</b>	<b>16</b>	<b>4</b>	

	Board
---	-------

FIFe	Board	Proposal 4	Other Proposals
<b>Resignation of FIFe as a member of the WCC</b>			

The Board suggests ending the membership of FIFe in the World Cat Congress (WCC).

**Motivation**

In the years of WCC membership, FIFe Members have not had many benefits from the WCC membership.

Mrs. Donatella Mastrangelo asked for the floor and said she would like to read out a statement, agreed by all 6 FIFe Commissions and she wanted this statement to be minuted.

Statement from the FIFe Commissions on the proposal from the Board to leave the WCC.

FIFe Commissions discussed the proposal from the Board to leave WCC and want to point out that they are all not in favour of such proposal for a variety of reasons. The most important lays in the fact that, as never before now we need to find a way to cooperate with the other major federations.


The present situation, especially in Europe, where animal protection lobbies try to disrupt our hobby, needs a joint effort finding a common ground to be able to react and give answers to the many and mostly unfounded accusations we receive. Breeds and breeders affected by this disruption have no cat fancy borders, and we cannot succeed without working, fighting together.

In our opinion, the interaction with other federations, clubs and associations of the cat fancy world should be conducted with an open and cooperative approach. It should be considered as a valuable resource for improving our knowledge, sharing our experiences and get the best out of each member, notwithstanding our differences and peculiarities.

In our opinion, leaving WCC now would put FIFe into an isolated, closed box, unable to stand as an important part, or rather the leader of the cat fancy's world.

We are of the opinion that we should not sit in the WCC forum just to check what others are doing. FIFe is the creator of the WCC and must be represented by those who can dedicate their time, passion and skills to it, remaining faithful to those inspiring principles of cooperation, being directly involved and promoting shared activities in favour of our breeds and breeders, and refrain from drawing boundaries.

The Judges & Standards, Breeding & Registration Commission, Show, Disciplinary, Health & Welfare and Public Relation Commissions

<b>Voting result</b>	<b>Yes</b>	<b>No</b>	<b>Abstentions</b>	<b>Missing</b>
 <b>WITHDRAWN</b>				



NO	NRR	Proposal / Antrag / Proposition 1	Standards, General Part / Allgemeiner Teil / Partie générale & EMS System	NEM
----	-----	-----------------------------------	--	-----

**Standard NEM – Six colour groups instead of four / Sechs statt vier Farbgruppen / Six groupes de couleur au lieu de quatre**

<b>Remarks/ Anmerkungen/ Remarques</b>	The NEVA MASQUERADE are judged in <del>four</del> <b>six</b> colour groups, i.e. only one certificate can be awarded in each group.	Die NEVA MASQUERADE werden in <del>vier</del> <b>sechs</b> Farbgruppen gerichtet, d.h. in jeder Gruppe kann nur ein Zertifikat vergeben werden.	Les NEVA MASQUERADE sont jugés en <del>quatre</del> <b>six</b> groupes de couleur, c'est-à-dire seulement un certificat peut être attribué pour chaque groupe.
--	---	---	--

<b>COLOUR / FARBE / COULEUR</b>	<b>EMS-Code</b>
---------------------------------	-----------------

**GROUP/GRUPPE/GROUPE I:**

Seal/Blue POINTED	NEM n/a
Seal/Blau POINTED	
Seal/Bleu POINTED	

Seal/Blue SMOKE POINTED	NEM n/a s
Seal/Blau SMOKE POINTED	
Seal/Bleu SMOKE POINTED	

**GROUP/GRUPPE/GROUPE II:**

Seal/Blue POINTED with WHITE	NEM n/a 01/02/03/09
Seal/Blau POINTED mit WEISS	
Seal/Bleu POINTED et BLANC	

Seal/Blue SMOKE POINTED with WHITE	NEM n/a s 01/02/03/09
Seal/Blau SMOKE POINTED mit WEISS	
Seal/Bleu SMOKE POINTED et BLANC	

**GROUP/GRUPPE/GROUPE III:**

Seal/Blue TABBY POINTED NEM n/a 21

Seal/Blau TABBY POINTED

Seal/Bleu TABBY POINTED

Seal/Blue SILVER TABBY POINTED NEM n/a s 21

Seal/Blau SILBER TABBY POINTED

Seal/Bleu SILVER TABBY POINTED

Seal/Blue GOLDEN TABBY POINTED NEM n/a y 21

Seal/Blau GOLDEN TABBY POINTED

Seal/Bleu GOLDEN TABBY POINTED

**GROUP/GRUPPE/GROUPE IV:**

Seal/Blue TABBY POINTED with WHITE NEM n/a 01/02/03/09 21

Seal/Blau TABBY POINTED mit WEISS

Seal/Bleu TABBY POINTED et BLANC

Seal/Blue SILVER TABBY POINTED with WHITE NEM n/a s 01/02/03/09 21

Seal/Blau SILBER TABBY POINTED mit WEISS

Seal/Bleu SILVER TABBY POINTED et BLANC

Seal/Blue GOLDEN TABBY POINTED with WHITE NEM n/a y 01/02/03/09 21

Seal/Blau GOLDEN TABBY POINTED mit WEISS

Seal/Bleu GOLDEN TABBY POINTED et BLANC

**GROUP/GRUPPE/GROUPE V:**

Red/Cream/Seal Tortie/Blue Tortie POINTED NEM d/e/f/g

Rot/Creme/Seal Schildpatt/Blau Schildpatt POINTED

Roux/Crème/Ecaille Seal/Ecaille Bleu POINTED

Red/Cream/Seal Tortie/Blue Tortie SMOKE NEM d/e/f/g s

Rot/Creme/Seal Schildpatt/Blau Schildpatt SMOKE

Roux/Crème/Ecaille Seal/Ecaille Bleu SMOKE

Red/Cream/Seal Tortie/Blue Tortie <b>TABBY POINTED</b>	<b>NEM d/e/f/g 21</b>
Rot/Creme/Seal Schildpatt/Blau Schildpatt <b>TABBY POINTED</b>	
Roux/Crème/Ecaille Seal/Ecaille Bleu <b>TABBY POINTED</b>	
Red/Cream/Seal Tortie/Blue Tortie <b>SILVER TABBY POINTED</b>	<b>NEM d/e/f/g s 21</b>
Rot/Creme/Seal Schildpatt/Blau Schildpatt <b>SILBER TABBY POINTED</b>	
Roux/Crème/Ecaille Seal/Ecaille Bleu <b>SILVER TABBY POINTED</b>	
Red/Cream/Seal Tortie/Blue Tortie <b>GOLDEN TABBY POINTED</b>	<b>NEM d/e/f/g y 21</b>
Rot/Creme/Seal Schildpatt/Blau Schildpatt <b>GOLDEN TABBY POINTED</b>	
Roux/Crème/Ecaille Seal/Ecaille Bleu <b>GOLDEN TABBY POINTED</b>	
<b>GROUP/GRUPPE/GROUPE VI:</b>	
Red/Cream/Seal Tortie/Blue Tortie <b>POINTED with WHITE</b>	<b>NEM d/e/f/g 01/02/03/09</b>
Rot/Creme/Seal Schildpatt/Blau Schildpatt <b>POINTED mit WEISS</b>	
Roux/Crème/Ecaille Seal/Ecaille Bleu <b>POINTED et BLANC</b>	
Red/Cream/Seal Tortie/Blue Tortie <b>SMOKE POINTED with WHITE</b>	<b>NEM d/e/f/g s 01/02/03/09</b>
Rot/Creme/Seal Schildpatt/Blau Schildpatt <b>SMOKE POINTED mit WEISS</b>	
Roux/Crème/Ecaille Seal/Ecaille Bleu <b>SMOKE POINTED et BLANC</b>	
Red/Cream/Seal Tortie/Blue Tortie <b>TABBY POINTED with WHITE</b>	<b>NEM d/e/f/g 01/02/03/09 21</b>
Rot/Creme/Seal Schildpatt/Blau Schildpatt <b>TABBY POINTED mit WEISS</b>	
Roux/Crème/Ecaille Seal/Ecaille Bleu <b>TABBY POINTED et BLANC</b>	
Red/Cream/Seal Tortie/Blue Tortie <b>SILVER TABBY POINTED with WHITE</b>	<b>NEM d/e/f/g s 01/02/03/09 21</b>
Rot/Creme/Seal Schildpatt/Blau Schildpatt <b>SILBER TABBY POINTED mit WEISS</b>	
Roux/Crème/Ecaille Seal/Ecaille Bleu <b>SILVER TABBY POINTED et BLANC</b>	
Red/Cream/Seal Tortie/Blue Tortie <b>GOLDEN TABBY POINTED with WHITE</b>	<b>NEM d/e/f/g y 01/02/03/09 21</b>
Rot/Creme/Seal Schildpatt/Blau Schildpatt <b>GOLDEN TABBY POINTED mit WEISS</b>	
Roux/Crème/Ecaille Seal/Ecaille Bleu <b>GOLDEN TABBY POINTED et BLANC</b>	

FIFe	JSC / RSK / CJS	Proposal / Antrag / Proposition 2	Standards, General Part / Allgemeiner Teil / Partie générale & EMS System	SIB/NEM/BLH/BSH/KBL/KBS
------	-----------------	-----------------------------------	--	-------------------------

**Standard SIB – CORIN – Recognised colour varieties / Anerkannte Farbvarietäten / Variétés de couleurs reconnues**

<b>Remarks/ Anmerkungen/ Remarques</b>	Maine Coon, Norwegian Forest Cat, Siberian and Turkish Angora are judged in one of the following colour variety groups, i.e. in each colour variety group a certificate can be awarded.	Maine Coon, Norwegische Waldkatze, Sibirer und Türkisch Angora werden in einer der folgenden Farbgruppen gerichtet, d.h. innerhalb jeder Farbgruppe kann ein Zertifikat vergeben werden.	Maine Coon, Chat des Bois Norvégiens, Sibérien et Angora Turc sont jugés dans les groupes de couleurs suivants, pour chaque groupe de couleur un certificat peut être délivré.
	Amber and Light amber are only recognised for black and blue within the existing colour varieties of the Norwegian Forest Cat.	Amber und Hellamber sind nur für Schwarz und Blau innerhalb der existierenden Farbvarietäten der Norwegischen Waldkatzen anerkannt.	Ambre et Ambre clair sont reconnues uniquement en noir et bleu parmi les couleurs déjà existantes pour le Chat des Bois Norvégiens.
	<i>CORIN (also known as sunshine, extreme sunshine and bimetallic) is only recognised for black and blue within the existing colour varieties of the Siberian.</i>	<i>CORIN (auch bekannt als sunshine, extreme sunshine und Bimetallic) ist nur für Schwarz und Blau innerhalb der existierenden Farbvarietäten der Sibirer anerkannt.</i>	<i>CORIN (aussi connu sous le nom sunshine, extreme sunshine et bimetallic) reconnues uniquement en noir et bleu parmi les couleurs déjà existantes pour le Sibérien.</i>

**COLOUR / FARBE / COULEUR** EMS-Code

**GROUP/GRUPPE/GROUPE I:**

Black/Blue	MCO/NFO/SIB/TUA n/a
Schwarz/Blau	
Noir/Bleu	

Only NFO: Amber/Light amber	NFO nt/at
Nur NFO: Amber/Hell amber	
Uniquement NFO: Ambre/Ambre clair	

**GROUP/GRUPPE/GROUPE II:**

Black/Blue with WHITE	MCO/NFO/SIB/TUA n/a 01/02 61/62/63/64
Schwarz/Blau mit WEISS	MCO/NFO/SIB/TUA n/a 03/09
Noir/Bleu et BLANC	

Only NFO: Amber/Light amber with WHITE	NFO nt/at 01/02 61/62/63/64
Nur NFO: Amber/Hell amber mit WEISS	NFO nt/at 03/09
Uniquement NFO: Ambre/Ambre clair et BLANC	

**GROUP/GRUPPE/GROUPE III:**

Black/Blue AGOUTI	MCO/NFO/SIB/TUA n/a 22/23/24/25
Schwarz/Blau AGOUTI	
Noir/Bleu AGOUTI	
Only NFO: Amber/Light amber AGOUTI	NFO nt/at 22/23/24/25
Nur NFO: Amber/Hell amber AGOUTI	
Uniquement NFO: Ambre/Ambre clair AGOUTI	
Black/Blue GOLDEN	MCO/NFO/SIB/TUA n/a y 11/12/22/23/24/25
Schwarz/Blau GOLDEN	
Noir/Bleu GOLDEN	
<i>Only SIB: Black/Blue CORIN</i>	<i>SIB n/a u 11/12/22/23/24/25</i>
<i>Nur SIB: Schwarz/Blau CORIN</i>	
<i>Uniquement SIB: Noir/Bleu CORIN</i>	
<b>GROUP/GRUPPE/GROUPE IV:</b>	
Black/Blue AGOUTI with WHITE	MCO/NFO/SIB/TUA n/a 01/02 21/22/23/24/25 61/62/63/64
Schwarz/Blau AGOUTI mit WEISS	MCO/NFO/SIB/TUA n/a 03/09 22/23/24/25
Noir/Bleu AGOUTI et BLANC	
Only NFO: Amber/Light amber AGOUTI with WHITE	NFO nt/at 01/02 21/22/23/24/25 61/62/63/64
Nur NFO: Amber/Hell amber AGOUTI mit WEISS	NFO nt/at 03/09 22/23/24/25
Uniquement NFO: Ambre/Ambre clair AGOUTI et BLANC	
Black/Blue GOLDEN with WHITE	MCO/NFO/SIB/TUA n/a y 01/02 11/12/21/22/23/24/25 61/62/63/64
Schwarz/Blau GOLDEN mit WEISS	MCO/NFO/SIB/TUA n/a y 03/09 11/12/22/23/24/25
Noir/Bleu GOLDEN et BLANC	
<i>Only SIB: Black/Blue CORIN with WHITE</i>	<i>SIB n/a u 01/02 11/12/21/22/23/24/25 61/62/63/64</i>
<i>Nur SIB: Schwarz/Blau CORIN mit WEISS</i>	<i>SIB n/a u 03/09 11/12/22/23/24/25</i>
<i>Uniquement SIB: Noir/Bleu CORIN et BLANC</i>	
<b>GROUP/GRUPPE/GROUPE V:</b>	
Red/Cream/Tortie SOLID/AGOUTI	MCO/NFO/SIB/TUA d/e/f/g
Rot/Creme/Schildpatt EINFARBIG/AGOUTI	MCO/NFO/SIB/TUA d/e/f/g 22/23/24/25
Roux/Crème/Écaille UNICOLORE/AGOUTI	

Only NFO:	Amber/Light amber TORTIE SOLID/AGOUTI	NFO ft/gt
Nur NFO:	Amber/Hell amber SCHILDPATT EINFARBIG/AGOUTI	NFO ft/gt 22/23/24/25
Uniquement NFO:	ECAILLE Ambre/Ambre clair UNICOLORE/AGOUTI	
Red/Cream/Tortie GOLDEN		MCO/NFO/SIB/TUA d/e/f/g y 11/12/22/23/24/25
Rot/Creme/Schildpatt GOLDEN		
Roux/Crème/Écaille GOLDEN		
<i>Only SIB:</i>	<i>Tortie CORIN</i>	<i>SIB f/g u 11/12/22/23/24/25</i>
<i>Nur SIB:</i>	<i>Schildpatt CORIN</i>	
<i>Uniquement SIB:</i>	<i>Écaille CORIN</i>	
<b>GROUP/GRUPPE/GROUPE VI:</b>		
Red/Cream/Tortie SOLID/AGOUTI with WHITE		MCO/NFO/SIB/TUA d/e/f/g 01/02 61/62/63/64
Rot/Creme/Schildpatt EINFARBIG/AGOUTI mit WEISS		MCO/NFO/SIB/TUA d/e/f/g 01/02 21/22/23/24/25 61/62/63/64
Roux/Crème/Écaille UNICOLORE/AGOUTI et BLANC		MCO/NFO/SIB/TUA d/e/f/g 03/09
		MCO/NFO/SIB/TUA d/e/f/g 03/09 22/23/24/25
Only NFO:	Amber/Light amber TORTIE SOLID/AGOUTI with WHITE	NFO ft/gt 01/02 61/62/63/64
Nur NFO:	Amber/Hell amber SCHILDPATT EINFARBIG/AGOUTI mit WEISS	NFO ft/gt 01/02 21/22/23/24/25 61/62/63/64
Uniquement NFO:	ECAILLE Ambre/Ambre clair UNICOLORE/AGOUTI et BLANC	NFO ft/gt 03/09
		NFO ft/gt 03/09 22/23/24/25
Red/Cream/Tortie GOLDEN with WHITE		MCO/NFO/SIB/TUA d/e/f/g y 01/02 11/12/21/22/23/24/25 61/62/63/64
Rot/Creme/Schildpatt GOLDEN mit WEISS		MCO/NFO/SIB/TUA d/e/f/g y 03/09 11/12/22/23/24/25
Roux/Crème/Écaille GOLDEN et BLANC		
<i>Only SIB:</i>	<i>Tortie CORIN with WHITE</i>	<i>SIB f/g u 01/02 21/22/23/24/25 61/62/63/64</i>
<i>Nur SIB:</i>	<i>Schildpatt CORIN mit WEISS</i>	<i>SIB f/g u 03/09 22/23/24/25</i>
<i>Uniquement SIB:</i>	<i>Écaille et BLANC</i>	
<b>GROUP/GRUPPE/GROUPE VII:</b>		
Black/Blue/Red/Cream SMOKE/SILVER		MCO/NFO/SIB/TUA n/a/d/e s
Schwarz/Blau/Rot/Creme SMOKE/SILBER		MCO/NFO/SIB/TUA n/a/d/e s 11/12/22/23/24/25
Noir/Bleu/Roux/Crème SMOKE/SILVER		

Only NFO:	Amber/Light amber SMOKE/SILVER	NFO nt/at s
Nur NFO:	Amber/Hell amber SMOKE/SILBER	NFO nt/at s 11/12/22/23/24/25
Uniquement NFO:	Ambre/Ambre clair SMOKE/SILVER	

Tortie SMOKE / Schildpatt SMOKE / Écaille SMOKE	MCO/NFO/SIB/TUA f/g s
Tortie SILVER / Schildpatt SILBER / Écaille SILVER	MCO/NFO/SIB/TUA f/g s 11/12/22/23/24/25

<i>Only SIB:</i>	<i>Black/Blue/Tortie CORIN SILVER</i>	<i>SIB n/a/f/g su 11/12/21/22/23/24/25</i>
<i>Nur SIB:</i>	<i>Schwarz/Blau/Schildpatt CORIN SILBER</i>	
<i>Uniquement SIB:</i>	<i>Noir/Bleu/Écaille CORIN SILVER</i>	

**GROUP/GRUPPE/GROUPE VIII:**

Black/Blue/Red/Cream SMOKE/SILVER with WHITE	MCO/NFO/SIB/TUA n/a/d/e s 01/02 61/62/63/64
Schwarz/Blau/Rot/Creme SMOKE/SILBER mit WEISS	MCO/NFO/SIB/TUA n/a/d/e s 01/02 11/12/21/22/23/24/25 61/62/63/64
Noir/Bleu/Roux/Crème SMOKE/SILVER et BLANC	MCO/NFO/SIB/TUA n/a/d/e s 03/09
	MCO/NFO/SIB/TUA n/a/d/e s 03/09 11/12/22/23/24/25

Only NFO:	Amber/Light amber SMOKE/SILVER with WHITE	NFO nt/at s 01/02 61/62/63/64
Nur NFO:	Amber/Hell amber SMOKE/SILBER mit WEISS	NFO nt/at s 01/02 11/12/21/22/23/24/25 61/62/63/64
Uniquement NFO:	Ambre/Ambre clair SMOKE/SILVER et BLANC	NFO nt/at s 03/09
		NFO nt/at s 03/09 11/12/22/23/24/25

Tortie SMOKE with WHITE / Schildpatt SMOKE mit WEISS / Écaille SMOKE et BLANC	MCO/NFO/SIB/TUA f/g s 01/02 61/62/63/64
Tortie SILVER with WHITE / Schildpatt SILBER mit WEISS / Écaille SILVER et BLANC	MCO/NFO/SIB/TUA f/g s 01/02 11/12/21/22/23/24/25 61/62/63/64
	MCO/NFO/SIB/TUA f/g s 03/09
	MCO/NFO/SIB/TUA f/g s 03/09 11/12/22/23/24/25

Only NFO:	Amber/Light amber TORTIE SMOKE/SILVER with WHITE	NFO ft/gt s 01/02 61/62/63/64
Nur NFO:	Amber/Hell amber SCHILDPATT SMOKE/SILBER mit WEISS	NFO ft/gt s 01/02 11/12/21/22/23/24/25 61/62/63/64
Uniquement NFO:	ECAILLE Ambre/Ambre clair SMOKE/SILVER et BLANC	NFO ft/gt s 03/09
		NFO ft/gt s 03/09 11/12/22/23/24/25

<i>Only SIB:</i>	<i>Black/Blue/Tortie CORIN SILVER with WHITE</i>	<i>SIB n/a/f/g su 01/02 11/12/21/22/23/24/25 61/21/63/64</i>
<i>Nur SIB:</i>	<i>Schwarz/Blau/Schildpatt CORIN SILBER mit WEISS</i>	<i>SIB n/a/f/g su 03/09 11/12/22/23/24/25</i>
<i>Uniquement SIB:</i>	<i>Noir/Bleu/Écaille CORIN SILVER et BLANC</i>	

**GROUP/GRUPPE/GROUPE IX:**

WHITE / WEISS / BLANC	MCO/NFO/SIB/TUA w 61/62/63/64
-----------------------	-------------------------------

**Standard NEM – CORIN - Recognised colour varieties / Anerkannte Farbvarietäten / Variétés de couleurs reconnues**

<b>Remarks/ Anmerkungen/ Remarques</b>	The NEVA MASQUERADE are judged in four colour groups, i.e. only one certificate can be awarded in each group.	Die NEVA MASQUERADE werden in vier Farbgruppen gerichtet, d.h. in jeder Gruppe kann nur ein Zertifikat vergeben werden.	Les NEVA MASQUERADE sont jugés en quatre groupes de couleur, c'est-à-dire seulement un certificat peut être attribué pour chaque groupe.
	<i>CORIN (also known as sunshine, extreme sunshine and bimetallic) is only recognised for black and blue within the existing colour varieties of the Neva Masquerade.</i>	<i>CORIN (auch bekannt als sunshine, extreme sunshine und Blau innerhalb der existierenden Farbvarietäten der Neva Masquerade anerkannt.</i>	<i>CORIN (aussi connu sous le nom sunshine, extreme sunshine et bimetallic) reconnues uniquement en noir et bleu parmi les couleurs déjà existantes pour le Neva Masquerade.</i>

**COLOUR / FARBE / COULEUR** **EMS-Code**

**GROUP/GRUPPE/GROUPE I:**

Seal/Blue POINTED	NEM n/a
Seal/Blau POINTED	
Seal/Bleu POINTED	

Seal/Blue SMOKE POINTED	NEM n/a s
Seal/Blau SMOKE POINTED	
Seal/Bleu SMOKE POINTED	

Seal/Blue TABBY POINTED	NEM n/a 21
Seal/Blau TABBY POINTED	
Seal/Bleu TABBY POINTED	

Seal/Blue SILVER TABBY POINTED	NEM n/a s 21
Seal/Blau SILBER TABBY POINTED	
Seal/Bleu SILVER TABBY POINTED	

Seal/Blue GOLDEN TABBY POINTED	NEM n/a y 21
Seal/Blau GOLDEN TABBY POINTED	
Seal/Bleu GOLDEN TABBY POINTED	



<i>Seal/Blue CORIN TABBY POINTED</i>	<i>NEM n/a u 21</i>
<i>Seal/Blau CORIN TABBY POINTED</i>	
<i>Seal/Bleu CORIN TABBY POINTED</i>	
<i>Seal/Blue CORIN SILVER TABBY POINTED</i>	<i>NEM n/a su 21</i>
<i>Seal/Blau CORIN SILVER TABBY POINTED</i>	
<i>Seal/Bleu CORIN SILVER TABBY POINTED</i>	
<b>GROUP/GRUPPE/GROUPE II:</b>	
<b>Seal/Blue POINTED with WHITE</b>	<b>NEM n/a 01/02/03/09</b>
<b>Seal/Blau POINTED mit WEISS</b>	
<b>Seal/Bleu POINTED et BLANC</b>	
<b>Seal/Blue SMOKE POINTED with WHITE</b>	<b>NEM n/a s 01/02/03/09</b>
<b>Seal/Blau SMOKE POINTED mit WEISS</b>	
<b>Seal/Bleu SMOKE POINTED et BLANC</b>	
<b>Seal/Blue TABBY POINTED with WHITE</b>	<b>NEM n/a 01/02/03/09 21</b>
<b>Seal/Blau TABBY POINTED mit WEISS</b>	
<b>Seal/Bleu TABBY POINTED et BLANC</b>	
<b>Seal/Blue SILVER TABBY POINTED with WHITE</b>	<b>NEM n/a s 01/02/03/09 21</b>
<b>Seal/Blau SILBER TABBY POINTED mit WEISS</b>	
<b>Seal/Bleu SILVER TABBY POINTED et BLANC</b>	
<b>Seal/Blue GOLDEN TABBY POINTED with WHITE</b>	<b>NEM n/a y 01/02/03/09 21</b>
<b>Seal/Blau GOLDEN TABBY POINTED mit WEISS</b>	
<b>Seal/Bleu GOLDEN TABBY POINTED et BLANC</b>	
<i>Seal/Blue CORIN TABBY POINTED with WHITE</i>	<i>NEM n/a u 01/02/03/09 21</i>
<i>Seal/Blau CORIN TABBY POINTED mit WEISS</i>	
<i>Seal/Bleu CORIN TABBY POINTED et BLANC</i>	
<i>Seal/Blue CORIN SILVER TABBY POINTED with WHITE</i>	<i>NEM n/a su 01/02/03/09 21</i>
<i>Seal/Blau CORIN SILVER TABBY POINTED mit WEISS</i>	
<i>Seal/Bleu CORIN SILVER TABBY POINTED et BLANC</i>	

**GROUP/GRUPPE/GROUPE III:**

Red/Cream/Seal Tortie/Blue Tortie POINTED	NEM d/e/f/g
Rot/Creme/Seal Schildpatt/Blau Schildpatt POINTED	
Roux/Crème/Ecaille Seal/Ecaille Bleu POINTED	

Red/Cream/Seal Tortie/Blue Tortie SMOKE	NEM d/e/f/g s
Rot/Creme/Seal Schildpatt/Blau Schildpatt SMOKE	
Roux/Crème/Ecaille Seal/Ecaille Bleu SMOKE	

Red/Cream/Seal Tortie/Blue Tortie TABBY POINTED	NEM d/e/f/g 21
Rot/Creme/Seal Schildpatt/Blau Schildpatt TABBY POINTED	
Roux/Crème/Ecaille Seal/Ecaille Bleu TABBY POINTED	

Red/Cream/Seal Tortie/Blue Tortie SILVER TABBY POINTED	NEM d/e/f/g s 21
Rot/Creme/Seal Schildpatt/Blau Schildpatt SILBER TABBY POINTED	
Roux/Crème/Ecaille Seal/Ecaille Bleu SILVER TABBY POINTED	

Red/Cream/Seal Tortie/Blue Tortie GOLDEN TABBY POINTED	NEM d/e/f/g y 21
Rot/Creme/Seal Schildpatt/Blau Schildpatt GOLDEN TABBY POINTED	
Roux/Crème/Ecaille Seal/Ecaille Bleu GOLDEN TABBY POINTED	

<i>Seal Tortie/Blue Tortie CORIN TABBY POINTED</i>	<i>NEM f/g u 21</i>
<i>Seal Schildpatt/Blau Schildpatt CORIN TABBY POINTED</i>	
<i>Ecaille Seal/Ecaille Bleu CORIN TABBY POINTED</i>	

<i>Seal Tortie/Blue Tortie CORIN TABBY POINTED</i>	<i>NEM f/g su 21</i>
<i>Seal Schildpatt/Blau Schildpatt CORIN TABBY POINTED</i>	
<i>Ecaille Seal/Ecaille Bleu CORIN TABBY POINTED</i>	

**GROUP/GRUPPE/GROUPE IV:**

Red/Cream/Seal Tortie/Blue Tortie POINTED with WHITE	NEM d/e/f/g 01/02/03/09
Rot/Creme/Seal Schildpatt/Blau Schildpatt POINTED mit WEISS	
Roux/Crème/Ecaille Seal/Ecaille Bleu POINTED et BLANC	

Red/Cream/Seal Tortie/Blue Tortie SMOKE POINTED with WHITE	NEM d/e/f/g s 01/02/03/09
Rot/Creme/Seal Schildpatt/Blau Schildpatt SMOKE POINTED mit WEISS	
Roux/Crème/Ecaille Seal/Ecaille Bleu SMOKE POINTED et BLANC	
Red/Cream/Seal Tortie/Blue Tortie TABBY POINTED with WHITE	NEM d/e/f/g 01/02/03/09 21
Rot/Creme/Seal Schildpatt/Blau Schildpatt TABBY POINTED mit WEISS	
Roux/Crème/Ecaille Seal/Ecaille Bleu TABBY POINTED et BLANC	
Red/Cream/Seal Tortie/Blue Tortie SILVER TABBY POINTED with WHITE	NEM d/e/f/g s 01/02/03/09 21
Rot/Creme/Seal Schildpatt/Blau Schildpatt SILBER TABBY POINTED mit WEISS	
Roux/Crème/Ecaille Seal/Ecaille Bleu SILVER TABBY POINTED et BLANC	
Red/Cream/Seal Tortie/Blue Tortie GOLDEN TABBY POINTED with WHITE	NEM d/e/f/g y 01/02/03/09 21
Rot/Creme/Seal Schildpatt/Blau Schildpatt GOLDEN TABBY POINTED mit WEISS	
Roux/Crème/Ecaille Seal/Ecaille Bleu GOLDEN TABBY POINTED et BLANC	
<i>Seal Tortie/Blue Tortie CORIN TABBY POINTED with WHITE</i>	<i>NEM f/g u 01/02/03/09 21</i>
<i>Seal Schildpatt/Blau Schildpatt CORIN TABBY POINTED mit WEISS</i>	
<i>Ecaille Seal/Ecaille Bleu CORIN TABBY POINTED et BLANC</i>	
<i>Seal Tortie/Blue Tortie CORIN TABBY POINTED with WHITE</i>	<i>NEM f/g su 01/02/03/09 21</i>
<i>Seal Schildpatt/Blau Schildpatt CORIN TABBY POINTED mit WEISS</i>	
<i>Ecaille Seal/Ecaille Bleu CORIN TABBY POINTED et BLANC</i>	

Standard BLH/BSH – CORIN – Recognised colour varieties / Anerkannte Farbvarietäten / Variétés de couleurs reconnues

COLOUR / FARBE / COULEUR	EMS-Code	Rem./ Anm.
WHITE / WEISS / BLANC	BLH/BSH w 61/62/63/67	A, B, C, F, K
Black/Blue/Chocolate/Lilac/Red/Cream/Cinnamon/Fawn Schwarz/Blau/Chocolate/Lila/Rot/Creme/Cinnamon/Fawn Noir/Bleu/Chocolat/Lilas/Roux/Crème/Cannelle/Faon	BLH/BSH n/a/b/c/d/e/o/p	B
Black/Blue/Chocolate/Lilac/Cinnamon/Fawn TORTIE Schwarz/Blau/Chocolate/Lila/Cinnamon/Fawn SCHILDPATT ÉCAILLE Noir/Bleu/Chocolat/Lilas/Cannelle/Faon	BLH/BSH f/g/h/j/q/r	B
SMOKE	BLH/BSH n/a/b/c/d/e/f/g/h/j/o/p/q/r s	B
SILVER TIPPED	BLH/BSH n/a/b/c/o/p s 11 BLH/BSH d/e/f/g/h/j/q/r s 11	D, G, H, O B, G, H, O
<i>CORIN SILVER TIPPED</i>	<i>BLH/BSH n/a/b/c/o/p su 11 BLH/BSH f/g/h/j/q/r su 11</i>	<i>D, G, H, M, O B, G, H, M, O</i>
GOLDEN TIPPED	BLH/BSH n/a y 11	D, G, H, P
<i>CORIN TIPPED</i>	<i>BLH/BSH n/a u 11</i>	<i>D, G, H, N, P</i>
TABBY	BLH/BSH n/a/b/c/d/e/f/g/h/j/o/p/q/r 22/23/24/25	B, G
SILVER TABBY	BLH/BSH n/a/b/c/d/e/f/g/h/j/o/p/q/r s 22/23/24/25 62/64	B, E, G, I, O
<i>CORIN SILVER TABBY</i>	<i>BLH/BSH n/a/b/c/f/g/h/j/o/p/q/r su 22/23/24/25 62/64</i>	<i>B, E, G, I, M, O</i>
GOLDEN TABBY	BLH/BSH n/a y 22/23/24/25	D, G, P
<i>CORIN TABBY</i>	<i>BLH/BSH n/a u 22/23/24/25</i>	<i>D, G, N, P</i>
VAN / HARLEQUIN/HARLEKIN/ARLEQUIN	BLH/BSH n/a/b/c/d/e/f/g/h/j/o/p/q/r 01/02 61/62/63	A, B, C, J
BICOLOUR/BICOLORE	BLH/BSH n/a/b/c/d/e/f/g/h/j/o/p/q/r 03	A, B, C, J
Van / Harlequin/Harlekin/Arlequin SMOKE	BLH/BSH n/a/b/c/d/e/f/g/h/j/o/p/q/r s 01/02 61/62/63	A, B, C, J
Bicolour/Bicolore SMOKE	BLH/BSH n/a/b/c/d/e/f/g/h/j/o/p/q/r s 03	A, B, C, J
Van / Harlequin/Harlekin/Arlequin TABBY	BLH/BSH n/a/b/c/d/e/f/g/h/j/o/p/q/r 01/02 21/22/23/24/25 61/62/63	A, B, C, L
Bicolour/Bicolore TABBY	BLH/BSH n/a/b/c/d/e/f/g/h/j/o/p/q/r 03 22/23/24/25	A, B, C, J

Van / Harlequin/Harlekin/Arlequin SILVER/ <i>CORIN SILVER</i> TABBY	BLH/BSH n/a/b/c/d/ef/g/h/j/o/p/q/r s/ <i>su</i> 01/02 21/22/23/24/25 61/62/63/64	A, B, C, E, L, <i>M, O</i>
Bicolour/Bicolore SILVER/ <i>CORIN SILVER</i> TABBY	BLH/BSH n/a/b/c/d/ef/g/h/j/o/p/q/r s/ <i>su</i> 03 22/23/24/25 61/62/63/64	A, B, C, E, J, <i>M, O</i>
Bicolour/Bicolore GOLDEN TICKED TABBY	BLH/BSH n/a y 03 25	D, G, <i>P</i>
<i>Bicolour/Bicolore CORIN TICKED TABBY</i>	<i>BLH/BSH n/a u 03 25</i>	<i>D, G, P</i>
POINTED	BLH/BSH n/a/b/c/d/ef/g/h/j/o/p/q/r 33	F
SMOKE POINTED	BLH/BSH n/a/b/c/d/ef/g/h/j/o/p/q/r s 33	F
TABBY POINTED	BLH/BSH n/a/b/c/d/ef/g/h/j/o/p/q/r 21 33	F
SILVER TIPPED POINTED	BLH/BSH n/a/b/c/d/ef/g/h/j/o/p/q/r s 11 33	F, <i>M, O</i>
SILVER TABBY POINTED	BLH/BSH n/a/b/c/d/ef/g/h/j/o/p/q/r s 21 33	F, <i>M, O</i>
GOLDEN TIPPED POINTED	BLH/BSH n/a/b/c/d/ef/g/h/j/o/p/q/r y 11 33	F, <i>N, P</i>
<i>CORIN TIPPED POINTED</i>	<i>BLH/BSH n/a/b/c/f/g/h/j/o/p/q/r u 11 33</i>	<i>F, N, P</i>
GOLDEN TABBY POINTED	BLH/BSH n/a/b/c/d/ef/g/h/j/o/p/q/r y 21 33	F, <i>N, P</i>
<i>CORIN TABBY POINTED</i>	<i>BLH/BSH n/a/b/c/f/g/h/j/o/p/q/r u 21 33</i>	<i>F, N, P</i>
<i>CORIN SILVER TIPPED POINTED</i>	<i>BLH/BSH n/a/b/c/d/ef/g/h/j/o/p/q/r su 11 33</i>	<i>F, N, O</i>
<i>CORIN SILVER TABBY POINTED</i>	<i>BLH/BSH n/a/b/c/d/ef/g/h/j/o/p/q/r su 21 33</i>	<i>F, N, O</i>
POINTED with WHITE/mit WEISS/avec BLANC	BLH/BSH n/a/b/c/d/ef/g/h/j/o/p/q/r 01/02/03 33	F
SMOKE POINTED with WHITE/mit WEISS/avec BLANC	BLH/BSH n/a/b/c/d/ef/g/h/j/o/p/q/r s 01/02/03 33	F
TABBY POINTED with WHITE/mit WEISS/avec BLANC	BLH/BSH n/a/b/c/d/ef/g/h/j/o/p/q/r 01/02/03 21 33	F
SILVER TIPPED POINTED with WHITE/mit WEISS/avec BLANC	BLH/BSH n/a/b/c/d/ef/g/h/j/o/p/q/r s 01/02/03 11 33	F, <i>M, O</i>
GOLDEN TIPPED POINTED with WHITE/mit WEISS/avec BLANC	BLH/BSH n/a/b/c/d/ef/g/h/j/o/p/q/r y 01/02/03 11 33	F, <i>N, P</i>
<i>CORIN TIPPED POINTED with WHITE/mit WEISS/avec BLANC</i>	<i>BLH/BSH n/a/b/c/f/g/h/j/o/p/q/r u 01/02/03 11 33</i>	<i>F, N, P</i>
GOLDEN TABBY POINTED with WHITE/mit WEISS/avec BLANC	BLH/BSH n/a/b/c/d/ef/g/h/j/o/p/q/r y 01/02/03 21 33	F, <i>N, P</i>
<i>CORIN TABBY POINTED with WHITE/mit WEISS/avec BLANC</i>	<i>BLH/BSH n/a/b/c/f/g/h/j/o/p/q/r u 01/02/03 21 33</i>	<i>F, N, P</i>
<i>CORIN SILVER TIPPED POINTED with WHITE/mit WEISS/avec BLANC</i>	<i>BLH/BSH n/a/b/c/d/ef/g/h/j/o/p/q/r su 01/02/03 11 33</i>	<i>F, N, O</i>
<i>CORIN SILVER TABBY POINTED with WHITE/mit WEISS/avec BLANC</i>	<i>BLH/BSH n/a/b/c/d/ef/g/h/j/o/p/q/r su 01/02/03 21 33</i>	<i>F, N, O</i>

<b>Eye colour/ Augenfarbe/ Couleur des yeux</b>	<b>A</b>	Deep blue	Dunkelblau	Bleu foncé
	<b>B</b>	Copper or deep orange	Kupferfarben oder dunkelorange	Cuivre ou orange foncé
	<b>C</b>	Odd eyed: one eye deep blue, the other one copper, deep orange or (yellowish) green	Odd eyed: ein Auge dunkelblau, das andere kupferfarben, dunkelorange oder (gelblich) grün	Impairs: un œil bleu foncé, l'autre cuivre, orange foncé ou vert(-jaunâtre)
	<b>D</b>	Green or blue green, green is preferred; outlined with the colour of the tipping/pattern	Grün oder blaugrün, grün bevorzugt; mit der Farbe des Tippings/Musters umrandet	Vert ou bleu-vert, vert de préférence; cerclés de la couleur du tipping/des marques
	<b>E</b>	Green or yellowish green; preferably green	Grün oder gelblich grün; grün bevorzugt	Vert ou vert-jaunâtre; vert de préférence
	<b>F</b>	Intense, deep Siamese blue	Intensives tiefes Siamblau	Bleu Siamois, intense et profond
<b>Coat colour/ Fellfarbe/ Couleur de la fourrure</b>	<b>G</b>	The <u>tipping/pattern</u> of the hairs is <u>dark</u>	Das <u>Tipping/die Zeichnung</u> der Haare ist <u>dunkel</u>	Le <u>tipping/dessin</u> est <u>foncé</u>
	<b>H</b>	In tipped cats, no distinction is made between shaded and shell cats: always apply EMS code 11 The back, flanks, head, ears and tail should be evenly tipped with the genetic color. Uniform tipping is more important than the tipping length on each hair.  The legs may show tipping diminishing towards the feet. They must be free of tabby markings.	Bei getippten Katzen wird kein Unterschied zwischen shaded and shell gemacht: verwende immer EMS Code 11. Rücken, Flanken, Kopf, Ohren und Schwanz sollen gleichmäßig in der genetischen Farbe getipped sein. Gleichförmiges Tipping ist wichtiger als die Tippinglänge auf jedem Haar. Die Beine dürfen zu den Pfoten hin ein abschwächendes Tipping zeigen. Die Beine müssen frei von Tabby-Zeichnung sein	Chez les chats tipped aucune distinction n'est faite entre shaded ou shell: toujours appliquer le code EMS 11. Le dos, les flancs, la tête, les oreilles et la queue doivent être également tipped avec la couleur génétique. Uniforme tipping est plus importante que la longueur de tipping sur chaque cheveu. Les membres peuvent montrer tipping diminuant vers les pattes. Ils doivent être exemptes de marques tabby.
<b>Remarks/ Anmerkungen/ Remarques</b>	<b>I</b>	Cats with green and cats with copper/orange eye colour are judged in separate classes	Katzen mit grünen und Katzen mit kupfer-/ orangefarbenen Augen werden in getrennten Klassen gerichtet	Chats aux yeux verts et cuivre/orange sont jugées dans les classes différentes
	<b>J</b>	All recognised eye colours of a variety are judged together in the same class	Alle anerkannten Augenfarben einer Varietät werden zusammen in derselben Klasse gerichtet	Toutes les couleurs des yeux reconnues d'une variété sont jugées ensemble dans la même classe
	<b>K</b>	BLH/BSH w 61/67 are judged together in the same class	BLH/BSH w 61/67 werden zusammen in derselben Klasse gerichtet	BLH/BSH w 61/67 sont jugées ensemble dans la même classe
	<b>L</b>	All tabby patterns (21-25) of the same Van (01) resp. the same Harlequin (02) variety are judged together in the same class, regardless the eye colour	Alle Tabby-Muster (21-25) der gleichen Van (01) bzw. der gleichen Harlekin (02) Varietät werden zusammen in derselben Klasse gerichtet, unabhängig von der Augenfarbe	Tous les dessins tabby (21-25) de la même variété Van (02) resp. même variété Arlequin (02) sont jugés ensemble dans la même classe, quelle que soit la couleur des yeux
	<b>M</b>	<i>Known as copper light, bimetallic</i>	<i>Bekannt als copper light, bimetallic</i>	<i>Connu sous le nom de copper light, bimetallic</i>
	<b>N</b>	<i>Known as copper, akita, flaxen gold</i>	<i>Bekannt als copper, akita, flaxen gold</i>	<i>Connu sous le nom de copper, akita, flaxen gold</i>
	<b>O</b>	<i>'s' and 'su' are judged in the same class</i>	<i>'s' und 'su' werden in derselben Klasse gerichtet</i>	<i>'s' et 'su' sont jugés dans la même classe</i>
	<b>P</b>	<i>'y' and 'u' are judged in the same class</i>	<i>'y' und 'u' werden in derselben Klasse gerichtet</i>	<i>'y' et 'u' sont jugés dans la même classe</i>

~~Standard KBL/KBS – CORIN – Recognised colour varieties / Anerkannte Farbvarietäten / Variétés de couleurs reconnues~~

<b>Remarks/ Anmerkungen/ Remarques</b>	<del>Kurilean Bobtail Longhair and Kurilean Bobtail Shorthair are judged in one of the following colour variety groups; i.e. in each colour variety group a certificate can be awarded.</del>	<del>Kurilischer Bobtail Langhaar und Kurilischer Bobtail Kurzhaar werden in einer der folgenden Gruppen von Farbvarietäten gerichtet; i.e. in jeder dieser Gruppe von Farbvarietäten kann ein Zertifikat vergeben werden.</del>	<del>Bobtail Kourilien Poils Longs et Bobtail Kourilien Poils Courts sont jugés dans les groupes de couleurs suivants, pour chaque groupe de couleurs un certificat peut être délivré.</del>
	<del><b>CORIN (also known as sunshine, extreme sunshine and bimetallic) is only recognised for black and blue within the existing colour varieties of the Kurilean Bobtail Longhair/ Shorthair.</b></del>	<del><b>CORIN (auch bekannt als sunshine, extreme sunshine und Bimetallic) ist nur für Schwarz und Blau innerhalb der existierenden Farbvarietäten der Kurilischer Bobtail Langhaar /Kurzhaar anerkannt.</b></del>	<del><b>CORIN (aussi connu sous le nom sunshine, extreme sunshine et bimetallic) reconnues uniquement en noir et bleu parmi les couleurs déjà existantes pour le Bobtail Kourilien Poils Longs / Poils Courts.</b></del>

~~COLOUR / FARBE / COULEUR~~

~~EMS Code~~

~~GROUP/GRUPPE/GROUPE I:~~

~~White/Black/Blue~~

~~KBL/KBS w 61/62/63/64~~

~~Weiss/Schwarz/Blau~~

~~KBL/KBS n/a~~

~~Blanc/Noir/Blou~~

~~Black/Blue SMOKE~~

~~KBL/KBS n/a-s~~

~~Schwarz/Blau SMOKE~~

~~Noir/Blou SMOKE~~

~~Black/Blue AGOUTI~~

~~KBL/KBS n/a 22/23/24/25~~

~~Schwarz/Blau AGOUTI~~

~~Noir/Blou AGOUTI~~

~~Black/Blue SILVER/CORIN SILVER/GOLDEN/CORIN AGOUTI~~

~~KBL/KBS n/a s/su/y/u 11/12/22/23/24/25~~

~~Schwarz/Blau SILBER/CORIN SILBER GOLDEN/CORIN AGOUTI~~

~~Noir/Blou SILVER/CORIN SILVER/GOLDEN/CORIN AGOUTI~~

**GROUP/GRUPPE/GROUPE II:**

~~Black/Blue with WHITE~~ ~~KBL/KBS n/a 01/02 61/62/63/64~~

~~Schwarz/Blau mit WEISS~~ ~~KBL/KBS n/a 03/09~~

~~Noir/Blou et BLANC~~

~~Black/Blue SMOKE with WHITE~~ ~~KBL/KBS n/a s 01/02 61/62/63/64~~

~~Schwarz/Blau SMOKE mit WEISS~~ ~~KBL/KBS n/a s 03/09~~

~~Noir/Blou SMOKE et BLANC~~

~~Black/Blue AGOUTI with WHITE~~ ~~KBL/KBS n/a 01/02 21/22/23/24/25 61/62/63/64~~

~~Schwarz/Blau AGOUTI mit WEISS~~ ~~KBL/KBS n/a 03/09 22/23/24/25~~

~~Noir/Blou AGOUTI et BLANC~~

~~Black/Blue SILVER/CORIN SILVER/GOLDEN/CORIN with WHITE~~ ~~KBL/KBS n/a s/su/y/u 01/02 11/12/21/22/23/24/25 61/62/63/64~~

~~Schwarz/Blau SILBER/CORIN SILBER/GOLDEN/CORIN AGOUTI mit WEISS~~ ~~KBL/KBS n/a s/su/y/u 03/09 11/12/22/23/24/25~~

~~Noir/Blou SILVER/CORIN SILVER/GOLDEN/CORIN AGOUTI et BLANC~~

**GROUP/GRUPPE/GROUPE III:**

~~KBL/KBS d/o/f/g~~

~~KBL/KBS d/o/f/g-s~~

~~KBL/KBS d/o/f/g 22/23/24/25~~

~~Red/Cream/Black/Blue TORTIE SILVER/GOLDEN AGOUTI~~ ~~KBL/KBS d/o/f/g s/y 11/12/22/23/24/25~~

~~Red/Cream/Black/Blue TORTIE~~

~~Rot/Creme/Schwarz/Blau SCHILDPATT~~

~~Roux/Crème/Noir/Blou ÉCAILLE~~

~~KBL/KBS f/g su/u 11/12/22/23/24/25~~



<del>Red/Cream/Black/Blue TORTIE SMOKE</del>	
<del>Rot/Creme/Schwarz/Blau SCHILDPATT SMOKE</del>	
<del>Roux/Crème/Noir/Blou ÉCAILLE SMOKE</del>	
<del>Red/Cream/Black/Blue TORTIE AGOUTI</del>	<del>KBL/KBS d/off/g 01/02 61/62/63/64</del>
<del>Rot/Creme/Schwarz/Blau SCHILDPATT AGOUTI</del>	<del>KBL/KBS d/off/g 03/09</del>
<del>Roux/Crème/Noir/Blou ÉCAILLE AGOUTI</del>	
<del>Red/Cream/Black/Blue TORTIE SMOKE with WHITE</del>	<del>KBL/KBS d/off/g s 01/02 61/62/63/64</del>
<del>Rot/Creme/Schwarz/Blau SCHILDPATT SMOKE mit WEISS</del>	<del>KBL/KBS d/off/g s 03/09</del>
<del>Roux/Crème/Noir/Blou ÉCAILLE SMOKE et BLANC</del>	
<del>Red/Cream/Black/Blue TORTIE AGOUTI with WHITE</del>	<del>KBL/KBS d/off/g 01/02 21/22/23/24/25 61/62/63/64</del>
<del>Rot/Creme/Schwarz/Blau SCHILDPATT AGOUTI mit WEISS</del>	<del>KBL/KBS d/off/g 03/09 22/23/24/25</del>
<del>Roux/Crème/Noir/Blou ÉCAILLE AGOUTI et BLANC</del>	
<del>Red/Cream/Black/Blue TORTIE SILVER/GOLDEN AGOUTI with WHITE</del>	<del>KBL/KBS d/off/g s/y 01/02 11/12/21/22/23/24/25 61/62/63/64</del>
<del>Rot/Creme/Schwarz/Blau SCHILDPATT SILVER/GOLDEN AGOUTI mit WEISS</del>	<del>KBL/KBS d/off/g s/y 03/09 11/12/22/23/24/25</del>
<del>Roux/Crème/Noir/Blou ÉCAILLE SILVER/GOLDEN AGOUTI et BLANC</del>	
<del>Black/Blue TORTIE CORIN SILVER/CORIN AGOUTI with WHITE</del>	<del>KBL/KBS f/g su/u 01/02 11/12/21/22/23/24/25 61/62/63/64</del>
<del>Black/Blue TORTIE CORIN SILVER/CORIN AGOUTI mit WEISS</del>	<del>KBL/KBS f/g su/u 03/09 11/12/22/23/24/25</del>
<del>Noir/Blou ÉCAILLE CORIN SILVER/CORIN AGOUTI et BLANC</del>	

**General Part – CORIN – Colour descriptions / Farbbeschreibungen / Descriptions des couleurs**

**MODIFIERS / MODIFICATEURS**

**CORIN**

-u

	<p>CORIN is a generic term to describe a modifier, which is only available for use with agouti cats.</p> <p>CORIN affects eumelanin (black pigment) production into the cat's hair and is not available for use with red and cream cats. The EMS codes 'd' and 'e' may not be used with CORIN.</p> <p>CORIN is an autosomal recessive trait and is only recognised in the following breeds: SIB/NEM, BLH/BLH, KBL/KBS.</p> <p>The names used for the modifier in the different breeds are contained in the breed standard.</p>	<p>CORIN ist ein Oberbegriff für einen Modifikator, der nur für die Verwendung bei Agouti-Katzen verfügbar ist.</p> <p>CORIN beeinflusst die Produktion von Eumelanin (schwarzes Pigment) im Katzenhaar und ist nicht verfügbar für Verwendung bei roten und creme Katzen. Die EMS-Codes 'd' und 'e' dürfen bei CORIN nicht verwendet werden.</p> <p>CORIN ist ein autosomal-rezessives Merkmal und ist nur bei folgenden Rassen anerkannt: SIB/NEM, BLH/BSH, KBL/KBS.</p> <p>Die Namen, die für den CORIN-Modifikator in den verschiedenen Rassen verwendet werden, sind im Rassestandard enthalten.</p>	<p>CORIN est un terme générique pour décrire un modificateur qui sera disponible que pour les chats agouti.</p> <p>CORIN affecte uniquement la production d'eumélanine (pigment noir) dans les poils du chat et n'est pas disponible pour les chats roux et crèmes. Les codes EMS "d" et "e" ne peuvent pas être utilisés avec CORIN.</p> <p>CORIN est un trait autosomique récessif et n'est reconnu que dans les races suivantes : SIB/NEM, BLH/BSH, KBL/KBS.</p> <p>Les noms utilisés pour le modificateur dans les différentes races figurent dans le standard de la race.</p>
--	--	---	--

**CORIN TIPPED**

-u 11/12

<p><b>Coat colour/ Fellfarbe/ Couleur de la fourrure</b></p>	<p>The ground colour is more intensive on face and back, with a lighter shade down the flanks, on the belly and underside of the tail.</p> <p>Whisker pads, chin and chest and top of feet may be whitish/light cream.</p> <p>The tipping may be pushed out to very tips of the hair and may only be visible on the tip of the tail.</p>	<p>Die Grundfarbe ist auf Gesicht und Rücken intensiver, mit einem helleren Farbton an den Flanken, am Bauch und an der Unterseite des Schwanzes.</p> <p>Schnurrhaarpolster, Kinn, Brust und Fußrücken können weißlich/hellcremefarben sein.</p> <p>Das Tipping kann bis in die Haarspitzen vorgedrängt sein und nur an der Schwanzspitze sichtbar sein</p>	<p>La couleur de fond est plus intense sur la face et le dos, avec une teinte plus claire sur les flancs, sur le ventre et sous la queue.</p> <p>Les coussinets des moustaches, le menton, la poitrine et le dessus des pieds peuvent être blanchâtres/ crème clair.</p> <p>Le tipping peut être repoussée jusqu'au bout des poils et peut être visible uniquement sur le bout de la queue.</p>
<p><b>Nose leather/ Nasenspiegel/ Truffe</b></p>	<p>Pink to apricot without rim or with broken rim</p>	<p>Rosa bis Apricot ohne Nasenumrandung oder mit gebrochenem Nasenumrandung</p>	<p>Rose à abricot sans contour ou avec contour cassé</p>
<p><b>Eye rims/ Augenumrandung/ Contour des yeux</b></p>	<p>Outlined with the colour of the pattern</p>	<p>Mit der Farbe des Musters umrandet</p>	<p>Cerclé de la couleur du dessin</p>
<p><b>Paw pads/ Fußballen/ Coussinets</b></p>	<p>Same colour as the tipping</p>	<p>In der Farbe des Tippings</p>	<p>De la même couleur que celle du tipping</p>

**CORIN TIPPED COLOUR VARIETIES/  
CORIN TIPPED FARBVARIETÄTEN/  
COULEURS DE CORIN TIPPED**

n/a/f/g u 11/12

<b>Ground colour/ Grundfarbe/ Couleur de base</b>	Very warm, from dark yellow to apricot	Sehr warm, dunkelgelb bis Apricot	Très chaud, du jaune foncé à l'abricot
<b>Paw pads/ Fußballen/ Coussinets</b>	As in the description for the corresponding base colour	Wie in der Beschreibung für die entsprechende Grundfarbe	Comme dans la description de la couleur de base correspondante
<b>CORIN tipped/ shaded/shell n/a/f/g u 11/12</b>	<u>Tipping:</u> as described in the corresponding tabby pattern. Hairs are tipped with the appropriate colour on pure golden coat	<u>Tipping:</u> wie bei dem entsprechenden Tabbymuster. Haare sind mit der passenden Farbe getippt auf einem reinen goldenen Fell	<u>Tipping:</u> comme dans le dessin tabby correspondant. Les poils sont tipté avec la couleur appropriée sur un fourrure d'or pur

**CORIN TABBY**

-u 22/23/24/25

<b>Pattern/ Muster/ Dessin</b>	Patterns as described for 22/23/24/25	Muster wie bei 22/23/24/25 beschrieben	Même description des dessins que pour les variétés 22/23/24/25
<b>Nose leather/ Nasenspiegel/ Truffe</b>	Pink to apricot without rim or with broken rim	Rosa bis Apricot ohne Nasenumrandung oder mit gebrochenem Nasenumrandung	Rose à abricot sans contour ou avec contour cassé
<b>Eye rims/ Augenumrandung/ Contour des yeux</b>	Outlined with the colour of the pattern	Mit der Farbe des Musters umrandet	Cerclé de la couleur du dessin
<b>Paw pads/ Fußballen/ Coussinets</b>	As for 22/23/24/25 varieties	Wie für 22/23/24/25 Varietäten	Idem aux variétés 22/23/24/25
<b>Remarks/ Anmerkungen/ Remarques</b>	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>A Corin Tabby is a tabby cat where the yellowish bands in the hair are wider. This gives in general a brighter/lighter expression of colour.</li> <li>There maybe a lighter shade down the flanks, on the belly and underside of the tail.</li> <li>Whisker pads, chin and chest and top of feet may be whitish/light cream.</li> </ul>	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>Eine Corin Tabby ist eine Tabby-Katze, bei der die gelblichen Bänder auf dem Haar breiter sind, wodurch sich generell eine hellere Ausprägung der Farbe ergibt.</li> <li>An den Flanken, am Bauch und an der Unterseite des Schwanzes kann es zu einem helleren Farbton kommen.</li> <li>Schnurrhaarkissen, Kinn, Brust und Fußrücken können weißlich/hellcremefarben sein.</li> </ul>	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>Sur un Corin Tabby, les bandes jaunâtres sur les poils sont plus larges, ce qui donne en général une couleur plus claire.</li> <li>Il peut y avoir une teinte plus claire sur les flancs, sur le ventre et sous la queue.</li> <li>Les babines, le menton, la poitrine et le dessus des pieds peuvent être blanchâtres/ crème clair.</li> </ul>

**CORIN TABBY COLOUR VARIETIES**  
**CORIN TABBY FARBVARIETÄTEN**  
**VARIÉTÉS DE COULEURS CORIN TABBY**

n/a/f/g u 22/23/24/25

<b>Ground colour/ Grundfarbe/ Couleur de base</b>	Very warm, from dark yellow to apricot	Sehr warm, dunkelgelb bis Apricot	Très chaud, du jaune foncé à l'abricot
<b>Paw pads/ Fußballen/ Coussinets</b>	As in the description for the corresponding base colour	Wie in der Beschreibung für die entsprechende Grundfarbe	Comme dans la description de la couleur de base correspondante

<b>Pattern/ Muster/ Dessin</b>	<b>Coat colour</b>	<b>Fellfarbe</b>	<b>Couleur de la fourrure</b>
<b>CORIN tabby n/a/f/g u 22/23/24/25</b>	<u>Pattern:</u> Visibility can be variable due to the wider hair bands and as described in the corresponding tabby pattern. Hairs are tipped/ticked/tabby patterned with the appropriate colour.	<u>Muster:</u> Die Sichtbarkeit kann aufgrund der breiteren Haarbänder und wie im entsprechenden Tabby-Muster beschrieben, unterschiedlich sein. Die Haare sind in der entsprechenden Farbe getippt/getickt/tabby gemustert.	<u>Dessin:</u> La visibilité peut être variable en raison des bandes de poils plus larges et comme décrit dans le dessin tabby correspondant. Les poils sont tipped/ticked/tabby de la couleur appropriée.

**CORIN AGOUTI with WHITE COLOUR VARIETIES**  
**CORIN AGOUTI mit WEISS FARBVARIETÄTEN**  
**VARIÉTÉS DE COULEURS CORIN AGOUTI avec BLANC**

n/a/f/g u 01/02/03/09 11/12/21/22/23/24/25

<b>n/a/f/g 01/02/03/09 11/12/21/22/23/24/25</b>	• For colour varieties with white the above mentioned descriptions apply analogously.	• Für die Farbvarietäten mit Weiss gelten die obigen Beschreibungen entsprechend.	• Pour les variétés avec blanc les descriptions ci-dessus sont valables.
---	---	---	--

**CORIN SILVER/SILBER AGOUTI**

-su 11/12/21/22/23/24/25

<b>Coat colour/ Fellfarbe/ Couleur de la fourrure</b>	Ground colour is pure pale silver. Coat on the forehead, top of head, body and outer part of legs shows three colours: white at the base, beige to warm yellow in the middle and tipped in the basic colour pattern.	Die Grundfarbe ist reines helles Silber. Das Fell an der Stirn, am Oberkopf, am Körper und an den Außenseiten der Beine weist drei Farben auf: Weiß an der Basis, Beige bis warmes Gelb in der Mitte und Tipped im Grundfarbmuster.	La couleur de fond est argent pâle pur. Le pelage du front, du dessus de la tête, du corps et de la partie extérieure des pattes présente trois couleurs : blanc à la base, beige à jaune chaud au milieu et avec tipping dans la couleur de base
<b>Nose leather/ Nasenspiegel/ Truffe</b>	Pink to apricot without rim	Rosa bis Apricot ohne Rand	Rose à abricot sans contour

<b>Eye rims/ Augenumrandung/ Contour des yeux</b>	Outlined with the colour of the pattern	Mit der Farbe des Musters umrandet	Cerclé de la couleur du dessin
<b>Paw pads/ Fußballen/ Coussinets</b>	As in the description for the corresponding base colour	Wie in der Beschreibung für die entsprechende Grundfarbe	Comme dans la description de la couleur de base correspondante
<b>Remarks/ Anmerkungen/ Remarques</b>	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>• Kittens can be born showing minimal warmth in the colour. The warmth in the colour develops at an early age and continues to develop into adulthood.</li> <li>• Extreme expression can result in minimal ground colour and/or minimal base colour tipping For -su 21-24, warmer markings may be visible on the chest, belly and legs</li> </ul>	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>• Jungtieren können mit minimaler Wärme in der Farbe geboren werden. Die Wärme der Farbe entwickelt sich bereits in jungen Jahren und entwickelt sich bis ins Erwachsenenalter weiter.</li> <li>• Ein extremer Ausdruck kann zu einer minimalen Grundfarbe und/oder einem minimalen Tipping führen</li> <li>• Bei -su 21-24 können wärmere Abzeichen an Brust, Bauch und Beinen sichtbar sein</li> </ul>	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>• Les chatons peuvent naître avec une chaleur minimale dans la couleur. La chaleur de la couleur se développe dès le plus jeune âge et continue de se développer jusqu'à l'âge adulte.</li> <li>• Une expression extrême peut entraîner une couleur de base minimale et/ou un tipping minimal de la couleur de base</li> <li>• Pour les -su 21-24, des marques plus chaudes peuvent être visibles sur la poitrine, le ventre et les pattes.</li> </ul>

**CORIN SILVER AGOUTI COLOUR VARIETIES  
CORIN SILBER AGOUTI FARBVARIETÄTEN  
VARIÉTÉS DE COULEURS CORIN SILVER**

**n/a/b/c/f/g/h/j/o/p/q/r su 11/12/22/23/24/25**

<b>n/a/b/c/f/g/h/j/o/p/q/r su 11/12/22/23/24/25</b>	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>• For colour varieties, the abovementioned descriptions apply analogously.</li> </ul>	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>• Für die Farbvarietäten gelten die obigen Beschreibungen entsprechend.</li> </ul>	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>• Pour les variétés les descriptions ci-dessus sont valables.</li> </ul>
---	--	---	---

**CORIN SILVER AGOUTI with WHITE COLOUR VARIETIES  
CORIN SILVER AGOUTI mit WEISS FARBVARIETÄTEN  
VARIÉTÉS DE COULEURS CORIN SILVER AGOUTI avec BLANC**

**n/a/b/c/f/g/h/j/o/p/q/r su 01/02/03/09 11/12/21/22/23/24/25**

<b>n/a/b/c/f/g/h/j/o/p/q/r su 01/02/03/09 11/12/21/22/23/24/25</b>	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>• For colour varieties with white the above mentioned descriptions apply analogously.</li> </ul>	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>• Für die Farbvarietäten mit Weiss gelten die obigen Beschreibungen entsprechend.</li> </ul>	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>• Pour les variétés avec blanc les descriptions ci-dessus sont valables.</li> </ul>
--	---	---	--

**CORIN AGOUTI POINTED**

-u 11/21 33

Pattern/ Muster/ Dessin	Rem./ Anm./ Rem	Coat colour	Fellfarbe	Couleur de la fourrure
	1	Body colour: Pale cream Point colour: Warm agouti markings in the corresponding basic point colour.	Körperfarbe: Helles creme Abzeichenfarbe: Warme Agouti-Zeichnungen in der entsprechenden Abzeichenfarbe.	Couleur du corps: Crème pâle Couleur des points: Marquages agouti dorés dans la couleur de point de base correspondante.
	2	Hairs are tipped (11) / tabby (21) patterned with the appropriate colour. Whisker pads, chin and chest and top of feet may be whitish/light cream.	Die Haare sind tipped (11) / tabby (21) und in der entsprechenden Farbe gemustert. Schnurrhaarkissen, Kinn, Brust und Fußrücken können weißlich/hellcremefarben sein.	Les poils sont tipped (11) / tabby (21) avec la couleur appropriée. Les coussinets des moustaches, le menton, la poitrine et le dessus des pieds peuvent être blanchâtres/crème clair
Nose leather/ Nasenspiegel/ Truffe	Pink to apricot without rim		Rosa bis Apricot ohne Rand	Rose à abricot sans rebord
Eye rims/ Augenumrandung/ Contour des yeux	Outlined with the colour of the pattern		Mit der Farbe des Musters umrandet	Cerclé de la couleur du dessin
Paw pads/ Fußballen/ Coussinets	As in the description for the corresponding base colour		Wie in der Beschreibung für die entsprechende Grundfarbe	Comme dans la description de la couleur de base correspondante
Remarks/ Anmerkungen/ Remarques	1	EMS Code 21 is used for all pointed tabby varieties	EMS-Code 21 wird für alle Tabby Varietäten mit Maskenabzeichen verwendet	EMS code 21 est utilisé pour tous les variétés tabby pointus
	2	EMS Code 11 is only available for BLH/BSH.	EMS-Code 11 ist nur für BLH/BSH verfügbar.	EMS code 11 n'est disponible que pour BLH/BSH.

**CORIN AGOUTI POINTED COLOUR VARIETIES  
CORIN AGOUTI-POINTS FARBVARIETÄTEN  
VARIÉTÉS DE COULEURS CORIN AGOUTI POINT**

n/a/b/c/f/g/h/j/o/p/q/r u 11/21 33

n/a/b/c/f/g/h/j/o/p/q/r u 11/21 33	• For colour varieties, the above mentioned descriptions apply analogously.	• Für die Farbvarietäten gelten die obigen Beschreibungen entsprechend.	• Pour les variétés les descriptions ci-dessus sont valables.
------------------------------------	---	---	---

**CORIN AGOUTI POINTED with WHITE COLOUR VARIETIES**  
**CORIN AGOUTI-POINTS mit WEISS FARBVARIETÄTEN**  
**VARIÉTÉS DE COULEURS CORIN AGOUTI POINT avec BLANC**

n/a/b/c/f/g/h/j/o/p/q/r u 01/02/03/09 11/21 33

<p>n/a/b/c/f/g/h/j/o/p/q/r u 01/02/03/09 11/21 33</p>	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>• For colour varieties with white the above mentioned descriptions apply analogously.</li> </ul>	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>• Für die Farbvarietäten mit Weiss gelten die obigen Beschreibungen entsprechend.</li> </ul>	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>• Pour les variétés avec blanc les descriptions ci-dessus sont valables.</li> </ul>
---	---	---	--

FIFe	JSC / BC RAG RSK / RK RAG CJS / CdR RAG	Proposal / Antrag / Proposition 3.1	Standards	RAG
Standard RAG				reworded

<p>The Ragdoll appears in three patterns: Colourpoint, Bicolour and Mitted (agouti or non-agouti) — and 20 colour varieties — altogether 60 varieties.</p> <p><i>The three patterns colourpoint, mitted and bicolour are important characteristics for the Ragdoll breed.</i></p>	<p>Die Ragdoll gibt es in 3 Mustern: Colourpoint, Mitted und Bicolour (agouti oder non-agouti) — und 20 Farben — insgesamt 60 verschiedene Varietäten.</p> <p><i>Die drei Zeichnungen colourpoint, mitted und bicolour sind wichtige Merkmale für die Rasse Ragdoll</i></p>	<p><del>Le Ragdoll existe en trois patrons: Colourpoint, Mitted et Bicoloure (agouti ou non-agouti) — et en 20 variétés de couleurs — au total 60 variétés.</del></p> <p><i>Les trois répartitions de couleur, colourpoint, mitted and bicolour, sont des caractéristiques importantes pour la race Ragdoll.</i></p>
---	---	--

Eyes/Augen/Yeux Colour/ Farbe/Couleur	Blue, the more intensive the better. <del>in relation to the body colour</del>	Blau, je intensiver desto besser. <del>in Relation zur Körperfarbe</del>	Bleu, le plus intense possible. <del>en rapport avec la couleur du corps.</del>
--	---	---	--

B	<p>Points: – ears, mask and tail – to be well defined. The mask to have an inverted white "V" <i>as symmetric as possible, which includes the nose leather. Chin is white.</i></p> <p>Body colour <del>is to be a shade lighter than the points;</del> with or without white spots on the back. <i>A white patch on genitals is allowed.</i></p> <p>Belly white and without spots. <del>Preference is given to white legs.</del> <i>The ideal is completely white feet and legs, the body colour must not extend down and cover more than one third of the legs.</i></p> <p><i>A small spot on legs/feet is tolerated.</i></p> <p><i>Paw pads: pink</i></p>	<p>Points: – Ohren, Maske und Schwanz – sollen gut abgegrenzt sein. Die Maske muss ein umgekehrtes weißes "V" aufweisen, <i>so symmetrisch als möglich, einschließlich des Nasenleder. Das Kinn ist weiß.</i></p> <p>Körperfarbe: <del>etwas heller als die Points;</del> mit oder ohne weiße Flecken am Rücken. <i>Ein weißer Punkt auf Genitalien ist erlaubt.</i></p> <p>Bauch weiß und ohne Flecken. <del>Weißer Beine werden bevorzugt.</del> <i>Ideal sind komplett weiße Beine und Pfoten, die Körperfarbe darf nicht nach unten reichen und mehr als ein Drittel der Beine bedecken.</i></p> <p><i>Ein kleiner Fleck an den Beinen/Pfoten wird toleriert</i></p> <p><i>Fußballen: rosa</i></p>	<p>Points: – oreilles, masque et queue – doivent être bien marqués. Le masque doit présenter un "V" blanc inversé <i>aussi symétrique que possible, incluant la truffe. Le menton est blanc.</i></p> <p>Couleur du corps: <del>d'une nuance un peu plus claire que celle des points,</del> avec ou sans taches blanches sur le dos. <i>Une portion de blanc sur les parties génitales est autorisée.</i></p> <p>Le ventre est blanc, sans tache. <del>Des membres blancs sont préférés.</del> <i>L'idéal sont des pieds et des membres complètement blancs, la couleur du corps ne doit pas s'étendre vers le bas et couvrir plus d'un tiers des membres.</i> <i>Une petite tache sur un membre/pied est tolérée.</i></p> <p><i>Coussinets : rose</i></p>
	C	<p>Points well defined and in harmony with the body colour, as in the Colourpoint.</p> <p>White chin, with or without a white narrow stripe/markings on the bridge of the nose up to the forehead.</p> <p>Narrow white stripe/markings is allowed on the muzzle as long as it follows the median line down into the chin.</p>	<p>Points gut abgegrenzt und mit der Körperfarbe harmonisierend, wie bei den Colourpoint.</p> <p>Weißes Kinn, mit oder ohne einem schmalen weißen Streifen/Zeichnung auf dem Nasenrücken hinauf bis zur Stirn.</p> <p>Ein schmaler weißer Streifen/Zeichnung auf der Schnauze ist erlaubt, solange er entlang der Medianlinie herunter zum Kinn liegt.</p>



<p>White stripe extends from the bib and runs down the underside between the front legs to the base of the tail. <b>A white patch on genitals is allowed.</b></p> <p>White mittens on the front <del>feet</del>, <del>legs</del> <b>maximum up to metacarpals the carpal pads. Lower mittens allowed as long as every toe is white. No dark spot on the white front mittens</b></p> <p>Hind legs white, minimum up to the heel and maximum to the middle of the thigh Coloured <b>small</b> spot(<del>s</del>) in this area <b>is are</b> acceptable.</p> <p>Nose leather: analogous to the colour of the points or pink Paw pads: pink <del>and/or analogous to the colour of the points</del></p>	<p>Ein weißer Streifen, beginnend am Lätzchen, zieht sich nach unten zwischen den Vorderbeinen bis zum Schwanzansatz durch. <b>Ein weißer Punkt auf den Genitalien ist erlaubt.</b></p> <p>Weiße Handschuhe an den Vorderpfoten; <b>maximal bis zu den Mittelhandknochen Karpalballen. Mehr Farbanteil ist erlaubt, sofern jeder Zeh weiß ist. Kein Fleck auf den vorderen Fäustlingen.</b></p> <p>Die Hinterbeine sollen mindestens bis zur Ferse und maximal bis zur Mitte des Oberschenkels weiß sein. <del>Farbige Flecken sind in diesem Bereich zulässig.</del> <b>Ein farbiger kleiner Fleck in diesem Bereich ist zulässig.</b></p> <p>Nasenspiegel: entsprechend der Farbe der Points oder rosa Fußballen: rosa <del>und/oder analog zur Farbe der Punkte oder rosa</del></p>	<p>Une bande blanche part de la collerette, passe par le ventre, entre les membres antérieurs et se termine sous la base de la queue. <b>Une portion de blanc sur les parties génitales est autorisée.</b></p> <p>Des mitaines blanches sur les <del>membres</del> <b>pieds antérieurs maximum jusqu'aux métacarpe coussinets cariens. Des mitaines minimales sont autorisées pour autant que tous les doigts soient blancs. Pas de tache forcée sur les mitaines des membres antérieurs.</b></p> <p>Les membres postérieurs doivent être blancs au minimum jusqu'au talon et au maximum jusqu'au milieu de la cuisse. <del>Des taches</del> <b>Une petite tache</b> colorées <b>dans cette zone</b> <del>sont est</del> acceptables <b>dans ce domaine.</b></p> <p>Truffe : analogue à la couleur des points ou rose Coussinets : rose <del>et/ou analogue à la couleur des points ou rose</del></p>
---	--	---

<p><b>Faults precluding the certificate / Fehler, die ein Zertifikat ausschließen</b> <b>Défauts excluant l'attribution du certificat</b></p>	C	<p><b>Head: Lack of white chin</b></p> <p><b>Coat: Broken or lack of white belly stripe</b></p> <p><b>Legs: White mittens higher than metacarpals or running up to the reverse side of the front feet</b></p>	<p><b>Kopf: Fehlendes weißes Kinn</b></p> <p><b>Fell: Gebrochener oder fehlender weißer Bauchstreifen</b></p> <p><b>Beine: Weiße Fäustlinge, die höher sind als die Mittelhandknochen oder die bis zur Rückseite der Vorderpfoten reichen</b></p>	<p><b>Tête : absence de menton blanc</b></p> <p><b>Fourrure : ligne blanche interrompue ou absente sur le ventre</b></p> <p><b>Membres : des mitaines blanches plus hautes que le métacarpe ou remontant sur la face arrière des membres antérieurs.</b></p>
	F	<p><b>Ears: White on ears</b></p> <p><b>Tail: White on tail</b></p> <p><b>Head: Any coloured markings/spots in the white area including the chin</b></p>	<p><b>Ohren: Weiß an den Ohren</b></p> <p><b>Schwanz: Weiß am Schwanz</b></p> <p><b>Kopf: Alle farbigen Markierungen/Flecken im weißen Bereich, einschließlich des Kinns</b></p>	<p><b>Oreilles : blanc sur les oreilles</b></p> <p><b>Queue : blanc sur la queue</b></p> <p><b>Tête : toutes marques/taches de couleur sur le blanc, menton inclus</b></p>
<b>Faults</b>	E	<b>Coat: any white spots</b>	<b>Fell: jeder Weisse Fleck</b>	<b>Fourrure : toute tache blanche</b>

<b>Head/ Kopf/ Tête</b>	general shape, nose, forehead, cheeks and muzzle, jaw and teeth, chin shape and size of the eyes	allgemeine Form, Nase, Stirn, Wangen und Schnauze, Gebiss und Kiefer, Kinn Form und Größe der Augen	forme générale, nez, front, joues et museau, mâchoires et denture, menton, forme et grandeur des yeux	<b>25-20</b>
<b>Coat/ Fell/ Fourrure</b>	colour and pattern	Farbe und Muster	couleur et dessin	<b>20 25</b>

FIFe	JSC / BC ACL/ACS RSK / RK ACL/ACS CJS / CdR ACL/ACS	Proposal / Antrag / Proposition 3.2	Standards	ACL/ACS
Standard ACL/ACS				

<b>EARS / OHREN / OREILLES</b>	Wide at the base and open, curving back in a smooth arc when viewed from the front and the rear.  <i>There shall not be an abrupt change of direction of the curl, nor pinch, horizontal, or vertical crimp. The interior surface shall not appear corrugated.</i>	Weit am Ansatz und offen, in sanftem Bogen nach hinten gebogen, wenn man sie von vorne und von hinten betrachtet.  <i>Es darf weder zu einer abrupten Richtungsänderung des Curls, noch zu einer Quetschung oder einem horizontalen oder vertikalen Knick kommen. Die Innenfläche darf nicht gewellt erscheinen.</i>	Larges à la base et ouvertes, vu de face ou de l'arrière courbées vers l'arrière en un arc doux.  <i>Il ne doit pas y avoir de changement brusque de direction, sans courbe douce, ni de pincement, plis horizontaux ou verticaux. La surface intérieure ne doit pas paraissant ridée.</i>
<b>Shape/ Form/ Forme</b>	Tips are rounded and flexible. Furnishings are desirable.	Spitzen gerundet und biegsam. Behaarung wünschenswert.	Bouts arrondis et flexibles. La présence de poils à l'intérieur des oreilles est souhaitable.

FIFe	JSC / BC MCO RSK / RK MCO CJS / CdR MCO	Proposal / Antrag / Proposition 3.3	Standards	MCO
Standard MCO				reworded

<b>General/ Allgemein/ Généralités</b>	<i>Origin/ Herkunft/ Origine</i>	The Maine Coon is a natural breed of amiable character that traces its origin to the working cat found on the farms of Northeast America.	Die Maine Coon ist eine natürliche Rasse mit liebenswürdigem Charakter, die ihren Ursprung in den "working cats" der Farmen von Nordost-Amerika hat.	Le Maine Coon est une race naturelle, au caractère agréable. Les fermiers d'Amérique du Nord Est les ont utilisés pour leurs capacités de chasseur.
	Appearance/ Gesamteindruck/ Apparence	The <del>breed of the</del> Maine Coon is large framed with a square outline of the head, large ears, broad chest, solid bone structure, a long, hard muscled, rectangular body and a long flowing tail. Good muscle tone and density give the cat the appearance of power and robustness.  <i>The Maine Coon should always be in good balance and proportion with no feature of the cat being exaggerated.</i>	<del>Die Rasse der</del> Maine Coon ist großformatig, mit kantigem Kopfumriss und großen Ohren, breitem Brustkorb, starkem Knochenbau, einem langen hart bemuskelten rechteckigen Körper und einem langen wehenden Schwanz. Gute Muskelspannung und Festigkeit geben der Katze einen Ausdruck von Kraft und Robustheit.  <i>Die Maine Coon sollte immer in guter Balance und Proportion sein ohne dass ein Merkmal der Katze übertrieben wird.</i>	Le Maine Coon est un grand chat aux contours de tête anguleux avec de grandes oreilles. La poitrine est large. L'ossature est solide, le corps est long et rectangulaire, très musclé, la queue est longue et flottante. La fermeté et la densité des muscles donnent à ce chat une apparence de puissance et de robustesse.  <i>Le Maine Coon doit toujours être en bon équilibre et en bonne proportion sans qu'aucune caractéristique du chat ne soit exagérée.</i>

Head/ Kopf/ Tête	Shape/ Form/ Forme	Medium in size <i>to the body</i> ; squared outline. <b>Upper part of the head broader than the muzzle.</b> <i>Enough height to create a</i> profile with a gentle concave slope. <i>Mature males may have larger and broader heads than females</i>	Mittelgroß <b>für den Körper</b> ; kantiger Kopfumriss. <i>Der obere Teil des Kopfes ist breiter als die Schnauze.</i> <i>Ausreichend hoch, um ein</i> Profil mit einer sanften konkaven Neigung <b>zu erstellen.</b> <i>Vollentwickelte Kater können größere und breitere Köpfe als Kätzinnen haben.</i>	De taille moyenne <b>par rapport au corps</b> , au contour carré. <i>La partie supérieure de la tête est plus large que le museau.</i> <i>Hauteur suffisante pour créer un</i> profil avec une légère courbe concave. <i>Les mâles adultes doivent avoir la tête plus grande et large que les femelles.</i>
	Chin/ Kinn/ Menton	Firm, <b>broad and deep enough to complete the square outline of the muzzle.</b> In vertical alignment with nose and upper lip.	Fest, <b>breit und tief genug, um den quadratischen Umriss der Schnauze zu vervollständigen.</b> In senkrechter Linie mit Nase und Oberlippe.	Ferme, <b>suffisamment large et profond pour compléter le contour carré du museau.</b> Forme une ligne verticale avec le nez et la lèvre supérieure.
Ears/ Ohren/ Oreilles	Shape/ Form/ Forme	Large, wide at the base, <b>straight outlines and moderately pointed.</b> <i>In adults not higher than 1 and half time the width of the base.</i> Lynx-tufts are desirable. Tufts of hair in the ears extend beyond outer edges of ears.	Groß, breit am Ansatz, <b>gerade Umriss und mäßig spitz zulaufend.</b> <i>Bei Erwachsenen nicht höher als das Anderthalbfache der Breite der Basis</i> Luchs-Pinselchen sind erwünscht. Haarbüschel in den Ohren ragen über den äußeren Ohrenrand hinaus.	Grandes, larges à la base, <b>aux contours droits et moyennement pointus.</b> <i>Chez les adultes, pas plus de 1 fois et demie la largeur de la base.</i> Des plumets sont souhaités. Des touffes de poils intérieurs dépassent du bord extérieur des oreilles.
	Placement/ Platzierung/ Placement	Set <b>fairly</b> high on head with a <b>very slight</b> outward tilt. <del>between</del> <b>set at eleven and one o'clock.</b>  Ears should be placed one ear's width apart.  The width extends slightly in older cats.  Lower base set just slightly further back than upper base.	<b>Sitzen ziemlich hoch auf dem Kopf, mit einer nach außen gerichteten Neigung, nach zwischen platziert auf 11 und 1 Uhr.</b> Der Ohrenabstand sollte eine Ohrbreite sein.  Der Abstand wird bei älteren Katzen etwas größer. Der untere Ansatz ist etwas weiter als der obere Ansatz nach hinten versetzt.	<b>Attaché assez haut sur la tête avec une inclinaison vers l'extérieur, entre placer à onze heures et une heure.</b> La distance entre les oreilles devrait être de la largeur d'une oreille. Cette distance s'agrandit quand les chats prennent de l'âge. La base inférieure de l'oreille est placée légèrement en arrière par rapport à la base supérieure.
Eyes/ Augen/ Yeux	Shape/ Form/ Forme	<b>Oval</b> , large <b>and expressive.</b> Appear round when wide open. Widely <b>and not deep</b> set.  <del>Slightly oval, but not almond shaped.</del>  Set slightly slanted towards the outer base of the ear.	<b>Oval</b> , Groß und <b>ausdrucksstark.</b> Erscheinen rund, wenn sie weit offen sind. Weit auseinanderstehend <b>und nicht tief angesetzt.</b> <del>Leicht oval, aber nicht mandelförmig, erscheinen rund, wenn sie weit offen sind.</del> Leicht schräg in Richtung äußerem Ohransatz gesetzt.	<b>Ovales</b> , grands et <b>expressives.</b> Paraissent ronds quand ils sont bien ouverts. Bien écartés <b>et pas enfoncés.</b>  <del>Légèrement ovales, mais pas en forme d'amande.</del> Placés légèrement en oblique vers la base extérieure de l'oreille.

<b>Coat/ Fell/ Fourrure</b>	Structure/ Struktur/ Structure	All weather coat. Dense. Short on head, shoulders and legs, becoming gradually longer down the back and sides, with long, full shaggy baggy trousers on the hind legs and belly fur. A frill is expected.  Texture silky. Coat has distinct body, falling smoothly. The undercoat is soft and fine, covered by the <del>coarse</del> <b>firm</b> smooth outercoat. <b>Length of coat and density of undercoat vary with seasons.</b>	Allwetterfell. Dicht. Kurz am Kopf, den Schultern und den Beinen, allmählich entlang des Rückens und an den Seiten nach hinten länger werdend, mit langen, vollen strähnigen Pluderhosen an den Hinterbeinen und langem strähnigem Fell am Bauch. Eine Halskrause wird erwartet. Textur seidig. Das Fell hat Stand, ist glatt fallend. Die Unterwolle ist weich und fein, von dem <del>grobe</del> , <b>festen</b> , glatten Deckhaar bedeckt. <b>Die Länge des Fells und die Dichte der Unterwolle variieren mit den Jahreszeiten.</b>	Fourrure adaptée à tous les temps. Dense. Courte sur la tête, les épaules et les membres, s'allonge sur le dos et les flancs. D'importantes culottes bien fournies longues, hirsutes et flottantes. Fourrure fournie sous le ventre. Colletterette souhaitée.  Texture soyeuse. Fourrure avec beaucoup de corps qui tombe avec souplesse. Sous poil doux et fin recouvert d'un poil de jarre <del>rude</del> <b>ferme</b> et retombant. <b>Longueur de fourrure et densité du sous-poil varient selon les saisons.</b>
<b>Condition</b>		<del>The Maine Coon should always be in good balance, condition and proportion.</del>	<del>Die Maine Coon sollte immer in guter Balance, Kondition und Proportion sein.</del>	<del>Bon équilibre des proportions et bonne condition indispensables.</del>

<b>Head/ Kopf/ Tête</b>	general shape, shape of nose, cheeks and muzzle, jaw and teeth, forehead, chin	allgemeine Form, Form der Nase, Wangen und Schnauze, Kiefer und Gebiss, Stirn, Kinn	forme générale, forme du nez, joues et museau, mâchoires et denture, front, menton	<del>25</del> <b>20</b>	<b>40</b>
	shape, <b>size</b> and placement of ears	Form, <b>Größe</b> und Platzierung der Ohren	forme, <b>taille</b> et placement des oreilles	<b>10</b>	
	shape, <b>size</b> and placement of eyes	Form, <b>Größe</b> und Stellung der Augen	forme, <b>taille</b> et placement des yeux	<del>5</del> <b>10</b>	

JSC / BC BEN FIFe RSK / RK BEN CJS / CdR BEN	<b>Proposal / Antrag / Proposition 3.4</b>	<b>Standards</b>	<b>BEN</b>
<b>Standard BEN</b>			<b>reworded</b>

<b>Appearance/ Gesamt- eindruck/ Apparence</b>	The Bengal is a <b>shorthair</b> domestic cat, which has the physical features of the small forest dwelling Felis Bengalensis or Leopard cat.  A cat with a basic "feral" appearance and the loving dependable temperament of the domestic cat. Alert appearance. The Bengal is sleek and very muscular.	Die Bengalkatze ist eine <b>kurzhaarige</b> domestizierte Katze mit den physischen Eigenschaften der im Dschungel lebenden kleinen Felis Bengalensis oder Leopardkatze. Sie ist eine Katze mit "wildem" Aussehen und dem lebenswerten anhänglichen Temperament einer domestizierten Katze. Aufgeweckte Erscheinung. Die Bengalkatze ist geschmeidig und sehr muskulös.	Le Bengal est un chat domestique <b>à poils courts</b> possédant les caractéristiques physiques du petit chat sauvage Felis bengalensis ou «chat léopard».  Un chat à l'apparence sauvage et au tempérament affectueux du chat domestique.  Vif d'allure. Le Bengal est très musclé à l'aspect luisant.
--	--	---	--

<b>Chin/ Kinn/ Menton</b>	<b>Wide, medium depth in balance with the muzzle</b>	<b>Breit, mitteltief, im Gleichgewicht mit der Schnauze</b>	<b>Large, profondeur moyenne, équilibré avec le museau</b>
-----------------------------------	--	---	--

<b>Coat/ Fell/ Fourrure</b> Structure/ Struktur	Short <del>to medium length</del> . Allowance for slightly longer coat in kittens. Texture is thick, luxurious, unusually soft to the touch, preferably showing glitter.	Kurz <del>bis mittellang</del> . Bei Jungtieren ist ein etwas längeres Fell erlaubt. Die Textur ist dicht, luxuriös, ungewöhnlich weich anzufassen, es wird bevorzugt wenn das Fell Glitzer aufweist.	Courte <del>à moyenne</del> . La robe des chatons peut être légèrement plus longue. Texture épaisse, voluptueuse, exceptionnellement douce au toucher, scintillante de préférence.
---	--	--	---

**REMARKS / ANMERKUNGEN / REMARQUES**

<b>Coat/ Fell/ Fourrure</b>	A mousy undercoat, <i>in cats up to 1 year old</i> , should not be penalised.	Eine mausfarbene Unterwolle <i>bei Katzen bis zu einem Jahr</i> , soll nicht als Fehler bestraft werden.	Un sous poil gris, <i>chez le chat jusqu'à 1 an</i> , ne doit pas être pénalisé.
-------------------------------------	---	--	--

**SCALE OF POINTS / PUNKTESKALA / ÉCHELLE DES POINTS**

Total				Points/ Punkte 100
<b>Head/ Kopf/ Tête</b>	general shape, nose, muzzle, <del>and teeth</del> , <del>forehead</del> , <i>profile</i> , chin, placement and shape of the ears, neck	allgemeine Form, Nase, <del>Schnauze und Gebiss</del> , Stirn, <i>Profil</i> , Kinn, Form und Platzierung der Ohren, Hals	forme générale, nez, museau <del>et dents, front</del> , <i>profil</i> , menton, forme et emplacement des oreilles, cou	20
<b>Eyes/ Augen/ Yeux</b>	shape, placement and colour	Form, Platzierung und Farbe	forme, emplacement et couleur	10
<b>Body/ Körper/ Corps</b>	size, shape, <i>proportion to the head</i> <del>Torse</del> , shape of legs and feet shape and length of the tail	Größe, Körperbau, <del>Torse</del> <i>Proportion zum Kopf</i> , Form der Beine und Pfoten Form und Länge des Schwanzes	taille, forme, <del>torse</del> <i>proportionné à la tête</i> , forme des membres et des pattes, forme et longueur de la queue	25
<b>Coat/ Fell/ Fourrure</b>	texture and colour	Struktur und Farbe	texture et couleur	20
	pattern and contrast	Zeichnung und Kontrast	dessin et contraste	<del>20</del> 45
	<del>length</del>	<del>Länge</del>	<del>longueur</del>	5
<b>Condition/ Kondition</b>				5

FIFe	JSC / BC BUR RSK / RK BUR CJS / CdR BUR	Proposal / Antrag / Proposition 3.5	Standards	BUR
Standard BUR				reworded

Nose/ Nase/ Nez	Distinct nose break at the base, <i>without nose bump</i> .	Am Ansatz ein deutlicher Break. <del>Kein auffallender Nasenbuckel (bump)</del> .	Cassure nette à la base du nez. <del>Pas de bosse proéminente sur le nez.</del>
Jaws/ Kiefer/ Mâchoires	Wide at the hinge, <i>without pinch</i> .	Breit am Scharniergelenk. <i>Kein Pinch</i> .	Larges à l'articulation. <i>Pas de mâchoire pincée</i> .

FIFe	JSC / BC EUR RSK / RK EUR CJS / CdR EUR	Proposal / Antrag / Proposition 3.6	Standards	EUR
Standard EUR				

Cheeks/ Wangen/ Joues	Well developed, <i>without hanging jowls</i>	Gut entwickelt, <i>ohne hängende Wangen</i>	Bien développées, <i>sans bajoues pendantes</i>
-----------------------------	--	---	---

FIFe	JSC / BC KBL/KBS RSK / RK KBL/KBS CJS / CdR KBL/KBS	Proposal / Antrag / Proposition 3.7	Standards	KBL/KBS
Standard KBL/KBS				

BODY/ KÖRPER/ CORPS	Compact, muscled, solid bone structure. The back shows a delicate curve from the shoulders to the rump, which is higher, <i>in harmony with the appearance of the cat</i> .	Kompakt, muskulös, kräftiger Knochenbau. Der Rücken zeigt eine leichte Bogenform von den Schultern zur höher gelegenen Kruppe, <i>im Einklang mit dem Aussehen der Katze</i> .	Compact, musclé, ossature solide. Le dos présente un léger arc des épaules à l'arrière train qui est plus haut, <i>en harmonie avec l'apparence du chat</i> .
Structure/ Struktur			

Tail/ Schwanz/ Queue	... Visible length of the tail (without coat) from 3 to 8 cm. Size and shape of the tail should harmonize with the overall appearance of the cat. <i>No delayed bobtail effect</i> .	... Die erkennbare Länge des Schwanzes (ohne Fell) ist 3 bis 8 cm. Größe und Form des Schwanzes sollten mit der Gesamterscheinung der Katze übereinstimmen. <i>Kein verzögerter Bobtail-Effekt</i> .	... La longueur visible de la queue (sans fourrure) va de 3 à 8 cm. La taille et la forme de la queue doit être en harmonie avec l'apparence générale du chat. <i>Pas d'effet bobtail retardé</i> .
----------------------------	--	--	---

FIFe	JSC/ BC MAU RSK / RK MAU CJS / CdR MAU	Proposal / Antrag / Proposition 3.8	Standards	MAU
Standard MAU				

COAT/ FELL/ FOURRURE	In the silver and bronze colour varieties the hair accommodates two or more bands of ticking separated by lighter bands. <i>Coat can take up to 14 months of age to develop.</i>	Bei den Silber- und Bronze-Farben zeigt das Haar 2 oder mehr Bänder Ticking, getrennt durch hellere Bänder. <i>Die Entwicklung des Fells kann bis zu 14 Monate dauern.</i>	Chez les variétés silver et bronze le poil montre 2 ou plusieurs raies de ticking séparées par des raies plus claires. <i>Le poil peut prendre jusqu'à 14 mois pour se développer.</i>
Colour/ Farbe/ Couleur	For colour varieties refer to the following table.	Zu den Farbvarietäten siehe nachstehende Tabelle.	Pour les variétés de couleur, se référer aux tableaux suivants.

FIFe	JSC / BC RUS RSK / RK RUS CJS / CdR RUS	Proposal / Antrag / Proposition 3.9	Standards	RUS
Standard RUS				

<i>General/ Allgemeines/ Généralités</i>		<i>The Russian Blue is a graceful looking cat with a sculpted head with straight lines. Long and elegant with medium bone structure, toned muscles, short dense double coat with silver sheen, expressive green eyes and with the characteristic smile.</i>	<i>Die Russisch Blau ist eine anmutig aussehende Katze mit einem geformten Kopf mit geraden Linien. Lang und elegant mit mittlerer Knochenstruktur, straffen Muskeln, kurzem, dichtem Doppelhaar mit silbernem Glanz, ausdrucksstarken grünen Augen und dem charakteristischen Lächeln.</i>	<i>Le Bleu Russe est un chat à l'allure gracieuse avec une tête sculptée aux lignes droites. Long et élégant avec une ossature moyenne, des muscles toniques, une double couche courte et dense aux reflets argentés, des yeux verts expressifs et un sourire caractéristique.</i>
Head/ Kopf/ Tête	Whisker pads/ Schnurrhaar- kissen/ Babines	<i>Slightly</i> Prominent	<del>Stark betont</del> <i>Leicht hervortretend</i>	<i>Légèrement</i> proéminentes
	Chin/ Kinn/ Menton	Strong. <i>The tip of the chin forms a vertical line with the tip of the nose.</i>	Kräftig. <i>Die Kinnschuppe bildet mit der Nasenspitze eine vertikale Linie</i>	Fort. <i>Le bout du menton forme une ligne verticale avec le bout du nez.</i>
Ears/ Ohren/ Oreilles	Shape/ Form/ Forme & <i>Placement/ Platzierung/ Emplacement</i>	Large and rather pointed, wide at the base, <i>set at a slight angle on the head.</i> The skin of the ears is fine and transparent, the inside hardly covered with hair.	Groß und ziemlich spitz, weit am Ansatz, <i>leicht schräg am Kopf ansetzen.</i> Die Haut der Ohren ist dünn und durchsichtig, die Innenseite kaum behaart.	Grandes et assez pointues, larges à la base, <i>placé légèrement incliné sur la tête.</i> La peau des oreilles est fine et transparente, l'intérieur à peine couvert de poils.
	<i>Placement/ Platzierung/ Emplacement</i>	<del>Set vertically to the head</del>	<del>Vertikal zum Kopf gesetzt</del>	<del>Placées verticalement sur le crâne</del>

Coat/ Fell/ Fourrure	Structure/ Struktur	Short, dense and very fine; standing up like plush; soft and silky. Double coat. <del>The texture and appearance of the coat is very different from those of any other breed.</del>	Kurz dicht und sehr fein; plüschartig aufstehend, weich und seidig. Doppeltes Fell <del>Die Textur und das Aussehen des Fells unterscheiden sich wesentlich von dem anderer Rassen.</del>	Courte, dense et très fine, dressée comme de la peluche; douce et soyeuse. Fourrure double. <del>La texture et l'apparence de la fourrure sont très différentes de celles des autres races.</del>
	Colour/ Farbe/ Couleur	Blue-grey, even and clear. <del>with a distinct silver sheen.</del> Medium <del>to lighter shade of blue-grey with a distinct and visible</del> silver sheen. <del>preferred.</del>	Blaugrau, gleichmäßig und rein. <del>mit deutlichem Silberschimmer.</del> Mittleres <del>bis hellen Farbton mit deutlich sichtbarem Silberschimmer.</del> Blaugrau mit <del>Silberschimmer wird bevorzugt.</del>	Gris-bleu, unie et nette, <del>avec un reflet argenté distincte,</del> <del>Moyenne a claire, avec un éclat argenté distinct et visible</del> <del>la préférence allant au gris-bleu moyen avec un reflet argenté.</del>

FIFe	JSC / BC SPH RSK / RK SPH CJS / CdR SPH	Proposal / Antrag / Proposition 3.10	Standards	SPH
Standard SPH				

General/ Allgemein/ Généralités	<i>The Sphynx is a sweet-tempered cat, lively, intelligent and amenable to handling.</i> Medium, surprising weight for its size.	<i>Die Sphynx hat einen lieben Charakter, sie ist lebhaft, intelligent und unkompliziert im Umgang.</i> Mittelgroß, für ihre Größe überraschend schwer.	<i>Le Sphynx est très gentil, actif, intelligent et <del>très</del> facilement sociable à manipuler.</i> Moyenne, étonnement lourd pour la taille.
Texture/ Textur/	Appears hairless, may be covered with short, fine down. Chamois-like, a feeling of resistance may be felt when stroking the skin of some cats.  <i>Short, soft, fine hair is allowed on the feet, across the bridge of the nose and cheekbones, at the back of the ears, the scrotum and the tip of the tail.</i>	Erscheint haarlos, kann mit einem kurzen, feinen Flaum bedeckt sein. Wildlederähnlich, wenn man über die Haut einiger Katzen streicht, hat man das Gefühl, als ob die Haut Widerstand bieten würde. <i>Kurze, weiche, feine Haare sind auf den Füßen, dem Nasenrücken und den Backenknochen, auf der Rückseite der Ohren, dem Hodensack und an der Schwanzspitze erlaubt.</i>	Semble n'avoir aucun poil, peut être recouvert d'un très léger duvet, comme une peau de chamois, une sensation de résistance peut être rencontrée quand on caresse la peau de certains chats  <i>Des poils, fins, courts et doux sont permis au niveau des pattes, au niveau du dessus du nez et des pommettes, à la base arrière des oreilles, le scrotum et l'extrémité de la queue.</i>
Wrinkles/ Falten/ Rides	Wrinkled skin desirable especially around the muzzle, between the ears and around the shoulders, although wrinkling should not be so pronounced that it affects the cat's normal functions.  <del>Short, soft, fine hair is allowed on the feet, across the bridge of the nose and cheekbones, at the back of the ears, the scrotum and the tip of the tail.</del>	Hautfalten sind besonders rund um die Schnauze, zwischen den Ohren und rund um die Schultern wünschenswert. Die Falten dürfen jedoch nicht so ausgeprägt sein, dass sie die normale Funktion der Katze beeinträchtigen.  <del>Kurze, weiche, feine Haare sind auf den Füßen, dem Nasenrücken und den Backenknochen, auf der Rückseite der Ohren, dem Hodensack und an der Schwanzspitze erlaubt.</del>	Un peau bien ridée est souhaitée, particulièrement autour de museau, entre les oreilles et autour des épaules. Mais les rides ne doivent être prononcées au point d'affecter la santé du chat.  <del>Des poils, fins, courts et doux sont permis au niveau des pattes, au niveau du dessus du nez et des pommettes, à la base arrière des oreilles, le scrotum et l'extrémité de la queue.</del>

<i>Faults precluding the certificate/ Fehler, die das Zertifikat ausschließen/ Défauts excluant le certificat</i>	<i>Any means of hair removal</i>	<i>Jeglicher Hinweis auf entfernte Haare</i>	<i>Toute impression de poils enlevés</i>
---	----------------------------------	--	--



FIFe	JSC / BC BOM RSK / RK BOM CJS / CdR BOM	Proposal / Antrag / Proposition 3.11	Standards	BOM
Standard BOM				

<b>BODY/ KÖRPER/ CORPS</b>  Shape/ Form/ Forme	Compact and well balanced, rectangular with body slightly longer than the legs. <i>Not too slender nor cobby.</i>	Kompakt und gut ausbalanciert, rechteckig mit etwas längerem Körper im Vergleich zu den Beinen. <i>Nicht zu schlank oder gedrungen.</i>	Compacte et bien balancé, rectangulaire avec un corps légèrement plus long que la hauteur des pattes. <i>Non trop mince ou trop ramassé.</i>
--	---	---	--